
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD BY REMOTE VIDEO CONFERENCING VIA - ZOOM 

 
ON TUESDAY 15 NOVEMBER 2022 AT 2.30 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
TUESDAY 15 NOVEMBER 2022

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 18th 

October 2022.   
 

3 - 5 

2   Questions to the Area Manager.   
 

6 - 10 

3   Finglas Area Office Report, Mick Carroll, Area Manager.   
 

11 - 17 

4   Proposed Extinguishment of the Public Right of Way at 12 Gortbeg Drive, Finglas, 
Dublin 11.   
 

18 - 19 

5   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
That the Area Committee request a presentation from the HSE regarding the 
Primary Health Care centre its delay, schedule for works and services provided. 
 

 

6   Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O'Reilly, Area Manager.   
 

20 - 29 

7   Motion in the name of Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy 
 
To ask that the middle meridian of the Ballymun Road be developed as a 
Biodiversity hot spot.  As we are in the middle of a Biodiversity crisis, we need to 
take a proactive approach to increasing our biodiversity, through tree planting, 
pollinator friendly plants, SUDS, etc. which will all help us to cope with our 
changing weather patterns.  The benefits include improved air quality, provide 
shade, increased pollinators and corridors for the movement of wildlife within the 
City.  It will also improve the look and feel of the area. 
 

 

8   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

That this Area Committee expresses concern regarding the parking situation in 
Ballymun Town Centre. There is illegal parking taking place in several locations 
from the Aspen building, the Swimming Pool and Gateway Crescent. There is no 
parking provided for at the student accommodation who are now parking in 
Balcurris Gardens using the resident’s spots and on footpaths around the vicinity. 

 



 

There needs to be a parking review done of the whole area to identify problems 
and produce workable solutions for all involved. 

 
9   With reference to a proposed disposal of a plot to the front of 48 Dolmen Court,   

Poppintree, Dublin 11.   
 

30 - 31 

10   Public Domain Report, Robert Ingram, A/Public Domain Officer   
 

32 - 35 

11   Halloween Report, Mick Carroll and Jackie O'Reilly, Area Managers.   
 

36 - 42 

12   Report on Community Grants 2022, Paul O'Halloran, Administrative Officer, 
Community & Social Development.   
 

43 - 52 

13   Nomination to EirGrid Powering Up Dublin Community Forum & Business Forum.   
 

 

14   Motion in the name of Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy 
 
To ask that we look at bringing all groups and organizations who are involved in 
circular activities together. We could start this initiative in Ballymun, with Axis, 
Rediscovery, schools and community groups who are already working away on 
their own around a circular activity.  
 

 

15   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

That all Housing Voids are advertised through Choice Based lettings for the next 
6 months in a bid to improve efficiencies. The CBL has been hugely successful in 
the eyes of the public as it is a very transparent process and people can see the 
turnaround in housing stock. 

 

 

16   Traffic Service Request, Status Report.   
 

53 - 57 

17   Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting.   
 

58 - 60 

18   Road Maintenance Report.   
 

61 - 95 

 



 
 
 

NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY 18th OCTOBER 2022 
 
 
NWA/102/2022  Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 

20th September 2022. 
 
 Order:     Agreed 
 
 NWA/103/2022          Questions to the Area Manager  
 
 Order:   Noted 
 
NWA/104/2022 Finglas Area Report, Mick Carroll, Area Manager 
 
 Order:  Noted  
 
NWA/105/2022 Proposed extinguishment of the Public Right of Way over the laneway 

between 19-27 McKee Avenue, Finglas, Dublin 11. 
 
   Order:  Recommend to City Council 
 
NWA/106/2022          With reference to the proposed disposal of a plot adjacent to 6  
                                   Westwood Road, Finglas, Dublin 11. 
   

            Order:  Recommend to City Council.  
 

A vote was taken, 5 Councillors Agreed (Noeleen Reilly, Keith 
Connolly, Briege MacOscar, Mary Callaghan and Lord Mayor 
Caroline Conroy)  
 
One Councillor, Anthony Connaghan, voted against. 

 
NWA/107/2022         Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

That the Manager arranges for the removal of plinth wall and railings at  
the area under footbridge on North Road in Finglas. Also, that the 
Manager removes all shrubbery etc within said area and arranges for 
trees adjacent to the area be pruned back and lower branches removed 
to allow clear line of sight into the area. This railed off area is a magnet 
for drug addicts and anti-social behaviour.  

           
Order:  Report to Councillor 

 
 
NWA/108/2022       Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O’Reilly, Area Manager 
 
                                Order: Noted  

 

Page 3



NWA/109/2022        With reference to the proposed grant of lease of The Horizons Building,  
           Balcurris Road, Ballymun, Dublin 11. 

 
        Order:  Recommend to City Council  

 
 

NWA/110/2022     Ballymun Local Area Plan – Update on Development Strategy Site 1 
(former Ballymun Shopping Centre) 

  
Order:  Noted 
  

NWA/111/2022           Ballymun Local Area Plan 2017 – Implementation Update, Site 26  
   Proposal. 
 

   Order:  Agreed 
 

NWA/112/2022           Presentation by the Telecoms Unit, Seamus Storan, Strategic Asset 
Manager, Kevin Mahon, Executive Engineer. Sinead French, Assistant 
Engineer.   

 
  Order:  Noted 

 
NWA/113/2022           Public Domain Report, Marguerite Delaney, A/Environmental Liaison 

Officer. 
  
                                  Order:  Noted  
 
NWA/114/2022            Motion in the name of Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy  
 

That this Area Committee agrees to put Swift Boxes on all suitable 
public buildings in the North West area.  This will help to curb the 
decline in Swifts.  Swifts are now a red-listed bird on the Birds of 
Conservation Concern in Ireland list.  One major factor for their 
decline is the loss of nest sites in our cities, towns and villages. 

 
 Order:  Report to Councillor  

NWA/115/2022         Motion in the name of Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy 
 

That this Area Committee agrees to putting in place Rain Garden 

Planter boxes at all public buildings in the North West area in order to 

reduce the amount of storm water entering our already under pressure 

drainage system.  These planter boxes have many benefits, they help 

prevent flooding, they increase biodiversity and provide food for our 

pollinators and they look great. 

   Order:  Report to Councillor 
 

NWA/116/2022         Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report. 
 
 Order:  Noted  

 
NWA/117/2022         Traffic Service Request, Status Report 
 

Order:    Noted 

Page 4



 
NWA/118/2022        Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting 
 

          Order:    Noted 
    
 
NWA/119/2022        Road Maintenance Report  
 

         Order:    Noted 
 

 
NWA Councillors: Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy, Keith Connolly, Mary Callaghan, , 

Anthony Connaghan, Noeleen Reilly, and Briege MacOscar. 
  
 

        
Officials:   Coilín O’Reilly, (Assistant Chief Executive), Derek Kelly (Director of 
Services-North West Area), Mick Carroll (Area Manager – Finglas), Jackie O’Reilly 
(Area Manager-Ballymun), Derek Healy,(Housing Manager, Finglas)  Marguerite 
Delaney (A/Environmental Liaison Officer), Marian Finglas, Senior Community Officer,  
Leona Harrison, (Senior Staff Officer) Mary Bellew ( Staff Officer),  Stephen Groome 
(NW District Parks Superintendent, Fiona Cooper, Senior Executive Planner, Gerald 
McEntagart, Executive Engineer, Seamus Storan, Strategic Asset Manager, Kevin 
Mahon Executive Engineer, Sinead French, Assistant Engineer, Cathy Cassidy, Senior 
Staff Officer 
 

 
 

 
Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

                 Chairperson 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 4.10 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 
Questions to the Area Manager   North West Area Committee 
       Meeting Tuesday 15th November 2022 
 
 
 

 
Q.1 Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager to find a solution to the continuing illegal parking on (details 
supplied) it is causing daily issues with cars having to reverse back onto a busy road 
in order to let cars pass. 

 
Q.2 Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy 

To ask the Manager can leaf composting workshops be organised ASAP for local 
groups.  This will help reduce the amount of leaves ending up in landfill and will 
create peat-free compost for local communities. 

 
Q.3 Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy 

To ask the Manager can the wild flower planting on the Ballygall Road East be 
timmed back for the winter. 

 
Q.4 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager following on from the successful filling in of part of the mound at 
Coultry Park if this can be done the whole way around to deal with illegal dumping. 

 
Q.5 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager for an update on providing a sensory garden in Poppintree Park. 
 
Q.6 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager for an update on the playground development and maintenance 
in Balcurris Park. 

 
Q.7 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager for an update on the reconstruction of the roundabouts at 
Jamestown Road and St Margaret’s Road. 

 
Q.8 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager to look at the traffic light sequence once again at Shangan 
Road, Ballymun Road Junction. The lights turn very quickly when traveling from one 
end of Ballymun to another. 

 
Q.9 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager for an update on the Ballymun Plaza redevelopment.  This is 
dragging on since Councillors voted this through. 

 
Q.10 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager to power wash the main street in Ballymun from Santry Cross 
down to Trinity Comp on both sides. 

 
Q.11 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager to put a temporary outdoor gym on the old shopping centre site 
Ballymun. 

 

Page 6



Q.12 Councillor Briege MacOscar  
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair of the footpath at the junction 
of 2 Pinewood Grove with Pinewood Drive. The pavement is quite badly smashed 
and is a trip hazard. 
 

Q.13 Councillor Briege MacOscar 
To ask the Manager if resurfacing work is due to take place on (details supplied).  
Several sections of the road are in very poor condition. 

 
Q.14 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the replacement front door at (details 
supplied). 

 
Q.15 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the poles which were installed outside 
(details supplied), is a pedestrian crossing due to be installed. 

 
Q.16 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the proposed removal of the tree at 
(details supplied).  

 
Q.17 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair of the footpath at (details 
supplied) It is in very poor condition. 

 
Q.18 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the inspection of the tree at (details 
supplied). 

 
Q.19 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the trees at the bottom of the cul de sac 
in (details supplied). Several appear to be dead and have fungus growing on them. 

 
Q.20 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to advise if there are any appropriate road markings or signage 
relating to the 30km/h speed limit in (details supplied). 

 
Q.21 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to  review the signage and layout of the roundabout at (details 
supplied)  Approaching cars frequently use the wrong side of the roundabout so 
signage indicating that traffic should keep left may be required. 

 
Q.22 Councillor Briege MacOscar 

To ask the Manager to investigate solutions to the rising problem of joyriding on 
(details supplied). Can the kerbing be changed to make entry on to the green more 
difficult. 

 
Q.23 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to consider providing more parking spaces for the residents at 
(details supplied). There is an overflow of cars parked in the parking bays on to the 
side of the road and it is only going to get worse when the new development nearby 
goes ahead. 

 
Q.24 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

Page 7



To ask the Manager to arrange for the bushes and tall weeds to be removed or 
trimmed back at the side wall of (details supplied) so that the home owner can paint 
the side of the wall to clean it up. Contractors have cut the grass recently but leave 
the larger weeds which are preventing the resident from painting the side of house. 

 
Q.25 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the trees to the side of (details supplied) to be 
trimmed back considerably as they are reaching the overhead cables and blocking 
sunlight into the garden of the property. 

 
Q.26 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the tarmac landing between 301A and 305 
Casement Road to be completely resurfaced. This has been requested previously 
but is now a serious health and safety issue with numerous potholes across the 
space. 

 
Q.27 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the removal of any remaining dog litter bins and 
replace with standard litter bins. The smaller dog litter bins are regularly overflowing, 
and the area would be better served with them being replaced. 

 
Q.28 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager what the approximate cost would be to build a retaining wall 
along Ratoath Road (Westwood Road towards Ratoath Avenue) which would also 
serve to allow the Finglas Celtic pitch to be extended to a full size which was the 
original idea many years ago. 

 
Q.29 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for a section of the footpath alongside Farnham Drive 
GAA pitch to be repaired. Heading north towards Farnham Crescent there is a 
section between the 2nd and 3rd streetlight which is very bad and is a serious trip 
hazard. 

 
Q.30 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the broken tap at (details supplied) to be 
repaired/replaced. 

 
Q.31 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager for an update on any proposed development for land between 
74 and 75 Fairlawn Road. 

 
Q.32 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the upgrading of Northway Park which 
was promised several years ago. 

 
Q.33 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for a clean-up of Wellmount Park and can contact be 
made with Dunne’s Stores to request an upgrade of their boundary which is in a poor 
state and very unsightly. 

 
Q.34 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager to send a crew to clear the leaves at [details supplied] 

 
Q.35 Councillor Mary Callaghan 

Page 8



To ask the Manager for an update on the landscaping and the installation of bollards 
at [details supplied]. 

 
Q.36 Councillor Mary Callaghan 

To ask the Manager for an update on discussions with Ballymun Kickhams in relation 
to how their strategic development plan fits with Dublin City Council plans and to ask 
the Manager to arrange for a meeting with the club, including Public Reps and 
relevant personnel in the City Council to discuss taking the plan forward. 

 
Q.37 Councillor Mary Callaghan 

To ask the Manager for an update on discussions with City Farm in relation to 
progressing their proposals and ask the Manager to arrange a meeting with City 
Farm, including Public Reps and relevant personnel in the City Council to discuss 
taking the plan forward. 

 
Q.38 Councillor Mary Callaghan 

To ask the Manager for information about the two blue road maintenance containers 
newly arrived at  [details supplied], the purpose for them being there and when it is 
expected that they will be moved.   

 
Q.39 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to arrange for a replacement front door for (details supplied). 
The front door lets in water when it rains and is quite insecure. The lady living there 
recently became a widow and doesn’t feel safe. 

 
Q.40 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the removal of the shrubbery and 
potential improvements at (details supplied). 

 
Q.41 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the repair of the carriageway at (details supplied). 

 
Q.42 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the reinstatement of the ramps at 
(details supplied). 

 
Q.43 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the retrofitting of council stock housing 
in the Finglas area, how many houses have been completed, how many are planned 
to be completed this year and for a list of roads.  

 
Q.44 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to carry out a review of the traffic lights at (details supplied). 
There have numerous complaints about cars not getting through, long delays and 
cars ignoring the lights.  

 
Q.45 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the tender process for the 
redevelopment of Kildonan Park.  

 
Q.46 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to arrange for an information campaign to discourage people 
from feeding seagulls. 

 

Page 9



Q.47 Councillor Keith Connolly 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the weeding and a review of the additional 
bollards etc. at (details supplied). 

 
Q.48 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the pruning of the trees at (details supplied). 

 
Q.49 Councillor Keith Connolly 

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair/extension of the cage for 
Finglas Cricket Club in Poppintree Park. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 

Item No: 3 

  
  

Finglas Area Office Report  
 

 
     Housing (Jan – Oct) 

 

     Estate Management 

No. Anti-Social Complaints per 1997 Act - drug related 25 

No. Anti-Social Complaints per 1997 Act - not drug related 21 

No. Other Complaints (nuisance) 214 

No. Racial Harassment Complaints 2 

  

No. Anti-Social Interviews per 1997 Act 13 

No. Other Interviews 120 

No. Requests for Mediation 0 

No. Complaints Referred to Central Est. Mgt. Unit for Action 4 

  

No. Section 20 Possessions 0 

No. Excluding Orders 0 

 Applied for by tenant 0 

 Applied for by DCC 0 

 Granted in court 0 

 Refused/failed in court 0 

 Withdrawn 0 

No. Surrender of Tenancy due to Anti-Social Behaviour 4 

  

No. Tenancy Warnings served 3 

No. Abandonment notice served 2 

No. Possession Orders requested 1 

No Court Orders Granted 0 

No. Appeals / Judicial Reviews / Challenges 0 

No. Warrants Executed (Evictions) 0 

No. of refusal / deferral to let due to Anti-Social Behaviour 0 

      

Page 11



Allocations 

 

 

Housing & Apartments 

Category Housing  Transfers Choice Base Letting 

Bands 2 & 3 6 4 5 

Medical 3 2 3 

Welfare 1 0  

Homeless 0 N/A  

Travellers 0 N/A  

Homeless HAP  N/A 5 3 

De-tenanting N/A 1  

Estate Management  N/A 2  

Maintenance Grounds N/A 3  

Surrendering Larger N/A 0  

Succession  2  

Total 10 19 11 

Senior Citizens 

Category Housing  Transfers Choice Base Letting 

Bands 2 & 3 5 0 2 

Medical 1 1  

Welfare 0 0  

Page 12



Voids Report 

 

Vacant Housing Units (37) 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

Abbotstown Avenue 2 bed house 23/12/2021 Work in progress  

Abbotstown Drive 2 bed house 29/11/2021 Works in progress  

Abbotstown Drive 3  bed house 27/06/2022 Works in progress 

Abbotstown Road  2 bed house 15/03/2022 Works in progress  

Ballygall Crescent 3 bed house 22/07/2021 Works in progress  

Ballygall Parade 2 bed maisonette 11/02/2022 Works in progress  

Ballygall Parade 2 bed maisonette 05/05/2022 Works in progress  

Ballygall Parade 2 bed maisonette 11/10/2022 Works in progress  

Barry Drive 3 bed house 02/09/2022 Works in progress 

Barry Drive 3 bed house 27/06/2022 Works in progress 

Barry Park 3 bed house 25/07/2022 Works in progress 

Berryfield Drive 3 Bed house 04/07/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Cappagh Drive 2 bed house 31/01/2022 Works in progress 

Cappagh Drive 2 bed house 20/10/2022 Works in progress 

Casement Green 3 bed house 14/07/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Cloonlara Road  3 bed house 22/07/2021 Works in progress  

Deanstown Park 4 bed house 27/06/2022 Works in progress 

Fairlawn Road  3 bed house 09/06/2022 Works in progress 

Fairlawn Road  3 bed house 05/05/2022 Works in progress 

Fairlawn Road  3 bed house 14/10/2022 Works in progress 

Finglas Park 3 bed house 23/08/2022 Works in progress 

Page 13



Finglaswood Road 2 bed maisonette 19/07/2022 Works in progress  

Glasanaon Road 2 bed House 03/10/2022 Works in progress 

Gortmore Road 3 bed House 13/10/2022 Works in progress 

Griffith Parade 2 bed house 20/12/2021 Works in progress  

Griffith Parade 2 bed house 21/02/2022 Works in progress  

Kilshane Road 3 bed house 21/06/2022 Works in progress 

Kippure Park 3 bed house 14/12/2021 Works in progress  

Kippure Park 3 bed house 06/9/2022 Works in progress 

McKelvey Ave 3 bed house 06/9/2022 Works in progress 

Mellowes Avenue 4 bed house 30/11/2021 Works in progress  

Ratoath Drive  3 bed house 31/01/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Ratoath Road 3 bed house 23/06/2022 Works in progress  

Rathvilly Park 4 bed house 15/06/2022 Works in progress 

St Canice’s Court 2 bed house 25/05/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Virginia Park 3 bed house 6/9/2022 Works in progress 

Westpark Drive 3 bed house 17/02/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

 

Vacant Senior Citizens Units (13) 

Address Type of Unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

Brookville Court 1 Bed 30/09/2022 Works in progress 

Glasanaon Court Bedsit 08/08/2022 Works in progress  

Kildonan Court 1 Bed 21/03/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Kilshane Court 2 Bed 05/09/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Kilshane Court 2 Bed 24/08/2022 Works in progress 

Mellowes Court Bedsit 24/09/2021 Works in progress 

Mellowes Court Bedsit 04/07/2022 Works in progress 

Mellowes Court 1 Bed 11/07/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Page 14



Mellowes Court Bedsit 09/09/2022 Works in progress 

Mellowes Court Bedsit 26/08/2022 Works in progress 

Merville Court 1 Bed 04/08/2022 Works in progress 

Merville Court 1 Bed 21/10/2022 Works in progress / On offer 

Merville Court 2 Bed 31/05/2022 Works in progress  

 
Choice Based Lettings 
 

 The following dwellings were advertised through the above scheme. 
 

Type of Dwelling Location Closing 
Date  

No of applicants 
eligible 

No of applicants not 
eligible 

3 Bed House 123 Kippure Park 14/10/2022 72 28 

3 Bed House 68 & 69 Fairlawn Road 14/10/2022 54 20 

2 Bed Maisonette 77 Ballygall Parade 04/11/2022 Being processed  

2 Bed Maisonette 85 Ballygall Parade 04/11/2022 Being processed  

2 Bed Maisonette 10 & 12 Barry Drive 04/11/2022 Being processed  

 

Rents Update 

 

 The Finglas Area Office continues to offer a rent assessment service for tenants 

living in the Finglas area. 

 

Assessments 1343 

Applications for Permission to Reside  44 

Refunds 34 

 
 
COMMUITY & SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
Better Finglas Book Club 
The Community and Social Development Section (CSDS) are proud to sponsor and support 
the “Better Finglas Book Club” 

The thinking behind the give-away is to encourage families to come together to read the 
book and to engage in creative activities using the resources provided. The Book Club runs 
the give-away once a month and some themes include; Halloween, Diversity, Kindness, 
Christmas etc. This month it is Halloween themed  with the “Room on the Broom” book and 
a Halloween Activity Pack. 

Finglas West Family Resource Centre Official Launch 
The Finglas West Family Resource Centre will officially open on the 8th of December. 
Agencies involved in the project either through funding, donations or who work directly with 
the project will have received an invite. The official launch will take place at the Resource 
Centre from 11am until 12.30pm. At 1pm the community, children and their families will be 
invited to meet Santa at the centre.  
 
 
 

Page 15



Sunshiney Day Circus Performance 
A great evening was had at the Circus Project Performance and Wrap Party! The Sunshiney 
Day Youth Club put on a great show with so many talented children and young adults putting 
on a Halloween Performance. This programme ran for 6 weeks. Each week the classes 
taught the children and young adults’ resilience, teamwork, diversity and a skill objective 
such as hula hoop, juggling and stilt walking. Dublin City Council was proud to support this 
project, with other supporters such as the charity “As Darragh Did”. 
 
 

                                                                           
 
 
Richard McKee Memorial 

The annual Richard McKee memorial event will take place on Saturday 19th 
November at 12.00 noon on Main Street, Finglas Village. This commemoration 
celebrates the 102 year anniversary of the deaths of General McKee, General 
Clancy and Volunteer Conor Clune.  
 

 
 
 
Finglas Youth Centre Halloween Camp 
Dublin City Council contributed €2,000 to support Finglas Youth Resource Centre’s 
Halloween Activities to go ahead this year. The Youth Workers organised many day trips for 
the 14yrs plus age group and held run- up parties and activities during the Halloween mid-
term break. All were well attended and enjoyed by those who took part.  

 

Page 16



 
 
 
Christmas tree Lighting Ceremony 
The Community & Social Development and Public Domain Teams are currently organising 
the Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony. This will take place on Thursday 1st of December at 
5pm at the Carpark at the bottom of Finglas Village.  
 
 
Mick Carroll 
Area Manager - Finglas 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 
 
Item No: 4 

 

PROPOSED EXTINGUISHMENT OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT 12 GORTBEG DRIVE, FINGLAS, 
DUBLIN 11. 

 

 

Proposal  
 
It is proposed to extinguish the public right of way at the above location in order to facilitate 
the installation of a plinth wall and railings to reduce/eliminate anti-social behaviour and access 
at this point into the estate.  The extent of this proposed extinguishment is shown on the 
attached Drawing SM-2022-0521. 
 
 

Service Checks 
 
A service check will be undertaken to establish the extent of the services located on this area. 
Suitable arrangements will be put in place prior to completion of this proposal. 
 

Statutory Requirement 

The statutory procedure involves giving public notice of the proposal in one or more 
newspapers circulating in the City and the affixing of that notice at the right of way for a period 
of not less than 14 days.  Any objections or representations made and not withdrawn shall be 
considered.  The extinguishment of a public right of way is a function reserved to the elected 
members of the City Council. 
 

Recommendation 

I recommend that procedures be initiated under Section 73 of the Roads Act 1993 to 

extinguish the public right of way over the area indicated on attached Drawing SM-2022-0521. 

 

 

Derek Kelly 
Director of Services 
North West Area 

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 

Item No: 6 

 

 

 
Ballymun Area Office Report  

 

 

1. LAP Update 

2. Community Development Update  

3. Economic Development Update 

4. Housing Report 

5. Ballymun Library 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



1. Local Area Plan Update 
 

Site 1 – Shopping Centre  

The process to appoint an estate agent to seek expressions of interest in the 
shopping centre site has commenced. The level of interest in the site will then be collated 
and analysed by the agents and their report will be considered by DCC with a view to 
determining next steps, Further update end Q1, 2023. 
 
Vacant DCC units 
 
Shangan Neighbourhood Centre 
The Development Department has commenced negotiations with the 3 parties interested in 
the Shangan Neighbourhood Centre vacant units following site visits and significant 
engagement with the Area Office. 
 
PPP Sites – Bundle 4 

Ballymun LAP Sites 5 – Main Street to Santry Cross, 15, 16, 17 & 18 Balcurris 
The above sites have been approved by the Department of Housing, Local Government & 
Heritage for inclusion in the National Social Housing PPP Programme, Bundle 4. An update 
was presented to North West Are Committee members by the PPP Project team in June 
2022.  The next project milestone is the appointment of the Design team which will be 
finalised in Q4 2022.  The PPP Project team will be in a position to bring forward a 
programme and scheme design update in Q1/Q2 2023.  
 
Affordable Housing Bodies 
 
Sites 8 & 9 - Coultry 
Housing and Community Services continue to engage with Empower the Family on their 
proposals for part of site 9. A single Expression of Interest is being prepared for sites 8 and 9 
together as this will improve the likelihood of success from the AHB Sector. It will also 
increase the viability of delivering mixed tenure developments on the sites. 
 
Sites 11 & 13 - Sillogue Avenue and Sillogue Road 
An Expression of Interest to the AHB Protocol is being finalised. Housing and Community 
Services are proposing to advertise a single Expression of Interest as this will improve the 
likelihood of success from the AHB Sector. It will also increase the viability of delivering 
mixed tenure developments on the sites. Community consultation will be arranged with the 
local residents and community.  
 
Site 14 - Balbutcher Lane 
The Planning and Housing Departments are currently finalising a revised density model 
which has been prepared for Site 14, the new proposals would increase the yield to 126 
dwellings. The scheme will then proceed to Part VIII.  
 
Site 19 – St. Joseph’s 
A decision is due in relation to Planning Application 4853/22 which was lodged on 14th 

September. This application was for 17 single storey senior citizens’ units and 34 affordable 

purchase houses. Housing and Community Services have engaged with the local community 

and are making arrangements to update local residents in relation to issues raised during the 

local public consultation in recent months.  

Site 25 – Parkview 
Dublin City Council and O’Cualann held further discussions on outstanding LAP 
requirements relating to parking provision and permeability. A revised planning application 

Page 21



for affordable homes is expected to be made shortly. Planning was secured earlier in the 
year for a block of 36 senior citizens’ units on the site.  

 
Site 30 – North City Operations Depot 
The construction of the North City Operations Depot continues to progress well.  
  
The main structural work to the Administration & Welfare Building is complete.  Work is 
continuing at roof level to install plant and roof light-well works which is almost 
complete.  Curtain walling installations are continuing on all façades of the building with 
glazing completed. Work is continuing on the installation of brackets for coloured fins along 
with timber effect infill panels.  Plastering is ongoing on all floors and stairwells. 1st and 2nd 
fix Mechanical & Electrical installations are continuing on all floors along with raised access 
floor installation. Under floor services containment is completed on 2nd and 3rd floors. 
Painting work is continuing along with decorative tiling to welfare areas. 
  
External precast edge panels are completed on the Multi Storey Car Park (MSCP).  Internal 
concrete works are mostly completed as is preparation for floor coatings application. 
  
1st and 2nd fix Mechanical & Electrical installations are continuing in the Central Stores and 
Workshops.  Sectional doors are now mostly installed.  Super-flat floor now laid in the 
Central Stores ground floor.  Preparation works for floor painting has commenced.  The 
external canopy framing to the front of the workshops has been installed and the metal 
cladding is continuing. External kerbing completed and tarmac started outside the Central 
Stores and Workshops.   
  
The Salt Barn’s Glulam frame is complete.  The 1st layer roof covering is installed and work 
on the final covering has commenced with erection of scaffold around this building. Timber 
cladding to walls has commenced. 
  
The Civic Amenity Site (CAS) Office roof is completed.  Window installation has 
commenced.  Mechanical & Electrical installations are well progressed.  CAS area kerbing 
and concrete slab is complete. 
  
The eastern patterned Boundary Wall (north of the entrance) has been installed and 
foundations for the Boundary Wall (south of the entrance) have commenced.  
  
The permanent east side access is in use by the Contractor as the main construction 
access.  Works to the northern access (opposite IKEA / Decathlon) are continuing with 
kerbing works to form the central island now mostly complete.  The Contractor is carrying out 
ongoing works around the existing traffic lights which will remain operational. New traffic light 
installations at both junctions are agreed between Dublin City Council and Fingal County 
Council. Junction design work is ongoing.  Footpath works external to the boundary wall are 
substantially complete along Carton Way including lighting, kerbing and laying tarmac. 
  
There have been some delays to the project programme and, assuming there are no further 
delays, the scheduled completion of construction is early 2023.  There will be a fit-out period 
after that for furniture and IS configuration.  It is still anticipated that the depot will start to 
become operational in Q1 of 2023. 
 
Sillogue Infrastructure Scheme 
The new Sillogue Avenue carriageway is open from Sillogue Road to Ballymun Road. 
The two new sets of pedestrian lights are now operational. Dublin City Council engaged in a 
communication campaign to make locals more aware of these new lights, particularly the 
one located at the Holy Spirit National School where many drivers were not obeying the red 

Page 22



light. Compliance appears to have improved but is still an issue at the traffic lights near Our 
Lady’s nursery. 
 
The new drainage pipes and manholes are approximately 80% completed in Sillogue 
Gardens. Work will then continue on building the new gullies and connecting these to the 
new network, followed by construction of new footpaths.  
 
Kerbing footpaths and parking bays have commenced in the laneway adjacent to the crèche. 
These works are slow while trying to maintain traffic flow. Work is continuing on the new 
parking bays and access laneway in the ‘triangle’ area at the east end of Sillogue Gardens. 
 
Antisocial behaviour continues to cause problems on site as discussed at the Ballymun 
Safety Forum. The Project team in conjunction with the Public Domain Team and local 
Gardaí, visited the local schools prior to Halloween to highlight the issues and to deliver a 
safety message.  

 

2. Community and Social Development  
 
Age Friendly Initiatives 
The first meeting of the North West Area Older Persons Council took place on Wednesday 
the 19th October and a new group has been formed.  New members are still enrolling for this 
group. 
 
A community team member attended the National Age Friendly Awards Ceremony along 
with two members of the Older Persons Council on Thursday the 27th November in 
Dromoland Castle, Co. Clare. This was a very worthwhile networking event. 
 
Environmental Issues 
The Community and Social Development team assisted the Ballymun Tidy Towns Group 
with the judging of the Halloween spooky gardens/schools competitions. Complementary 
bulbs were delivered to over 60 groups in the last few weeks. 
 
Upcoming Initiatives 
As part of Inclusion and Integration Week 2022, (7th to 14th November) The Community team 
will be organising and supporting the following events: 
 

 FACT: Relaunch of the Group and taster sports session for members and families – 
7th November – 3pm - Poppintree Community Centre. 

 Disability Sports Day: Activities to include walking football, tennis and boccia – 
Trinity Comprehensive Sports Hall – Monday the 7th November – 1:30pm – 3:30pm. 

 Walk and Talk Historical Tour – Santry Woods – Tuesday the 8th November – 
11:15am – 1:15pm. 

 Gala Concert for Older Persons: Active Living and the Community team are 
holding a Gala Concert on Friday the 18th November in the atrium, Ballymun Civic 
Offices from 7pm. 

 Ballymun Health and Fitness Summit – 18th to 20th November. Dublin City Council, 
Ballymun have provided funding and additional supports for this Health and 
Wellness-related summit which is the first of its kind in Ballymun and includes a 
variety of health and wellness related activities, workshops and conferences to take 
place in Trinity Comprehensive, Axis Ballymun and the Ballymun Plaza. The 
Community team are involved in a number of activities over the weekend including 
the Come and Try Day to take place on the Plaza on Friday the 18th November. 

Page 23



 Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony and Santa: Friday the 2nd December from 
5pm. Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy will open this festive event. 
 

3. Economic Development Update 
 

 
       The Power of Small Steps 

 A climate action event 'The Power of Small Steps’ 

was held in the Rediscovery Centre. Hans Zommer, 

CEO Global Action Plan Ireland talked about 

sustainable practices which can be introduce to 

support businesses.  The Lord Mayor of Dublin Cllr 

Caroline Conroy was also in attendance. 

Read about it here: https://bit.ly/3fdHzZo  

 

The B4b’ next networking event will tak place in Trinity 
Comprehensive School on Tuesday 22nd November.  This wil be a 
breakfast networking event where the LCVP 5th Year students will  
meet local businesses and learn about networking and running a 
business. For more information about B4b visit www.b4b.ie or 
contact: info@b4b.ie 
All local businesses and organisations welcome: 
https://bit.ly/3h6Nn7w  
 
 

 
Shop-front enhancement scheme 
 

 
 One further application was received in October bringing 
the total number of approvals this year to 10.The total 
amount awarded: € 21,263.00  
 
 
 

 
Ballymun CoderDojo   
Ballymun CoderDojo continued during the month with two Dojos now taking place on 
Saturday mornings in the Ballymun Child & Family Resource Centre.  The Dojo would like to 
hear from anybody interested in volunteering for a few hours on Saturday morning.  No 
coding experience necessary and all training provided: http://ballymunfrc.org/coder-dojo/   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24

https://bit.ly/3fdHzZo
http://www.b4b.ie/
mailto:info@b4b.ie
https://bit.ly/3h6Nn7w
http://ballymunfrc.org/coder-dojo/


Ballymun Job Centre, Work Experience Enterprise – Pilot 
Our Economic Development Officer is working with the current group on building a new 
website for the Startup Ballymun Initiative.  The group includes people from Ballymun and 
surrounding areas who are developing their IT and project management skills. A beta 
version of the website will be presented next month.  
 
‘Return to Work’ – Jobs Fair 
 

The ‘Return to Work’ jobs fair took place on Thursday 13th October in 
the atrium of the Civic Centre, Ballymun. The employers were 
delighted with the large turnout. The venue worked really well and 
there is definitely scope to do more of these in the future.  Over 800 
people were contacted about the event directly by the Dept. of Social 
Protection while others were contacted through Dublin North West 
Partnership and the Ballymun Jobs Centre.  Over 20 employers were 
available on the day with vacancies to fill mainly in the retail, 
healthcare and hospitality sectors. In addition the local employment 
services and training centres were there too.  Local employers who 
attended included Freshways, Ikea, Musgrave Market Place and 

Trinity Community Care. 
 
 
 

4.  Housing Report 
 

Farewell to Leona Fynes 

Leona Fynes, Area Housing Manager for the Ballymun Area has recently moved on to a new 

post within Dublin City Council.  

 

Leona has proactively led the area housing team for the past two years. She has supported 

many residents and families in the area. In addition she has delivered a number of local 

initiatives and worked in collaboration with the Community and Public Domain Teams on 

local area improvements during her time in Ballymun.   

 

Rent Assessments  

 
Assessments 

 
704 

 
Permissions To Reside 

 
17 

 
Refunds 

 
7 

 
Opening of Accounts 

                                         7 
(including  3 sole/  1 successions) 

 
Closing of Accounts 

                                         3 
(including  0 sole / 0 successions) 

 
Front Counter Calls 

 
                                       130 

 
Window Replacements 

 
0 

 
 

Page 25



Lettings January to October 
 

Allocation Category  Housing List 

2022 

Transfer List 

2022 

Older Persons 

2022 

Bands 2 & 3 4 4 1 

Medical 1 2 2 

Welfare 1 1 0 

Homeless 0 0 2 

Travellers 0 0 0 

Transfer HAP 0 0 0 

De-tenanting 0 0 0 

Estate Management 0 6 0 

Maintenance 0 0 0 

Surrendering Larger 0 4 1 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 

Succession/Sole  37 0 0 

Transfer 0 0 1 

Inter-transfer 0 2 0 

Total 43 19 7 

 
 
 
Choice Based Lettings 
 

Allocation Category  
 

Housing Bands 2 & 3 16 

Transfer Bands 2 & 3 2 

Transfer HAP 1 

Medical 1 

Welfare 0 

Homeless 1 

Travellers 1 

Surrender larger 1 

Total 23 

 
      
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 Voids for October 

    
Address 

 

Type Date of Vacancy 

 

Status 

Balcurris Park West 1 Bed Apt 28/6/2022 Under Offer 

Balcurris Park West 1 bed Apt 18/05/2022 Under Repair 

Barnewall Drive 2 Bed Apt 28/6/2022 Under Repair 

Belclare Drive 3 Bed House 4/8/2022 Under Repair 

Carton Drive 1 bed apt 25/8/2022 CBL 

Carton Road 4 Bed House 07/04/2022 Under Repair 

Coultry Close 1 Bed Apt 27/3/2022 Under Offer 

Coultry Drive 3 bed house 5/6/2022 Under Repair 

Coultry Terrace 2 Bed Apt 04/02/2022 Under Offer 

Cranogue Close 4 Bed House 14/10/2022 Under Repair 

Gateway Court 3 Bed House 13/03/2022 Under Offer 

Hollytree Terrace 4 Bed House 28/6/2022 Under Nomination 

Marewood Crescent 4 Bed House 15/9/2022 Under Repair 

Marewood Crescent 3 Bed House 29/7/22022 Under Repair 

Owensilla Terrace 1 Bed Apt 13/6/2022 CBL 

Parkview Green 1 Bed Apt 30/05/2022 Under Repair 

Sandyhill Gardens 3 Bed House 12/06/2022 Under Repair 

Shangan Gardens 3 Bed House 31/07/2022 Under Repair 

Shangan Green 3 Bed House 24/08/2022 Under Repair 

Silloge Green 2 Bed Apt 6/3/2022 Under Offer 

Silloge Park 1 Bed Apt 20/7/2022 Under Offer 

The Plaza 2 Bed Apt 23/6/2022 Under Nomination 

Whiteacre Close 2 Bed Apt 24/7/2022 Under Repair 

Woodhazel Terrace 2 Bed Apt 23/08/2022 Under Repair  

 
 
Older Persons Units 
 

Address 

 

Type Date of Vacancy Status 

Ard Na Meala Maisonette 01/06/2022 Under Repair 

Sandyhill Gardens    Bedsit 26/09/2022 Under Repair 

 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 
Estate Management  

October 2022  

No of Anti- Social complaints per 1997 act Drug related  0 

No of Anti-Social complaints per 1997 act (Not Drug Related) 20 

No of other Complaints 12 

Total Complaints 32 

No of Anti-Social Interviews per 1997 act 4 

No of Other Interviews 5 

Total Interviews 9 

No Requests for mediation 0 

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action 0 

No of Section 20 Evictions 0 

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant 0 

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC 0 

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti-Social Behaviour 0 

No of Tenancy Warnings sent to Central Unit 0 

No of Court Orders Granted 0 

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges 0 

No of Warrants executed (Evictions) 0 

 
 
 
5. Ballymun Library 
 
Ballymun Library continues to re-engage with the public post Covid with a diverse range of 
activities and events to suit people of all ages. Current highlights include our Reading 
Diversely literature series in partnership with the Irish Writers Centre and our fortnightly Irish 
Revolution Book Club, facilitated by DCC Historian-in-Residence Dr. James Curry. 
 
Author Jane Mitchell will visit the library in November as part of Dublin Book Festival to read 
from and discuss her new book, Run for Your Life. Two classes from local primary schools 
have been invited to attend this event. 
 
A new initiative for November is our monthly English Conversation Exchange which started 
on Thursday 10th November during DCC Social Inclusion and Integration Week 2022 (7-14 
November).  
 
At the request of Transport Infrastructure Ireland, the Metro Link Railway Order is on display 
in the library until Wednesday 26th November. 
 
Current Opening Hours for Ballymun Library are: 
Monday to Thursday: 10am - 8pm 
Friday and Saturday: 10am - 5pm 

Page 28



Ballymun Library Events November 2022 

Non Regular 
or Regular 

Events 
Event Category Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Non-Regular Cultural Irish Revolution Book Club with Dr. 
James Curry, DCC Historian-in-
Residence 
Book: Cathal Brugha by Fergus 
O’Farrell (3rd of 4 sessions) 

Adults Wednesday 23rd November, 
6.30pm 

Non-Regular Display Metro Link Railway Order - Public 
Display 

Adults During opening hours 
(Thursday 6th October to 
Wednesday 26th November) 

Non-Regular Cultural Reading Diversely Literature Series 
with writer Sree Sen (Sree Sen will 
discuss books from her diverse 
reading list) 

Adults Monday 14th November, 
6.30pm 

Regular Cultural Japanese Culture Club Adults and 
Children 

Wednesday 16th November, 
10.00am -12.00pm 

Regular Community Ballymun Ladies Group Adults Tuesday 15th November, 
5.30pm-7.30pm 

Regular Cultural Ballymun Library Writers’ Group Adults Wednesdays, 4pm-6pm 

Regular Cultural Ballymun Painting Group Adults Mondays, 10.30am-12pm  

Regular Book Club Ballymun Library Murder Book Club 
Book: The Coroner’s Daughter by 
Andrew Hughes 

Adults Wednesday 30th November 
at 12.00pm 

Regular Book Club Ballygall Book Club Adults Monday 21st November, 
6.30pm 

Regular Cultural Evening Book Club 
Book: The Vanishing Act of Esme 
Lennox by Maggie O’Farrell 

Adults Monday 28th November, 
6.30pm 

Regular Cultural Scrabble Group Adults Tuesdays, 11am-1.00pm 

Regular Cultural Digital Photography Group Adults Thursday 24th November, 
10.30am-12.30pm 

Regular Cultural Ciorcal Comhrá (Irish Language 
Conversation Group) 

Adults Thursdays, 3pm-4pm 

Regular Book Club Kids Comic Club Children Tuesday 29th November, 
4.30pm-5.30pm 

Regular Children’s Baby Book Club & Story time Children (new-
borns to 
children aged 
2 yrs.)  

Mondays, 10am-11am   

 

Regular Children’s  Toddler Book Club & Story time Children (2 yrs. 
old to 
preschool) 

Thursdays, 10am-11am 

 
 
Jackie O’Reilly 
Area Manager, Ballymun 
 

Page 29



Document is Restricted

Page 30

Access to this report has been restricted to Members of this Committee only due to General Data Protection Regulations



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 

Item No: 10 

 

 

PUBLIC DOMAIN REPORT  

 

 

Waste Management and Illegal Dumping 
There were 201 incidences of illegal dumping recorded on CRM for October which were 
dealt with by Waste Management Services. 281 community clean-up were supported by the 
Public Domain Team for the month. 
 

Bio Bags (compostable) are being distributed to as many groups as possible in order to 
assist with the clearing of leaves in the area.  This initiative is very popular with local 
residents/environmental groups which has resulted in an increase in community clean ups 
since September.   
 
Bulb Distribution 
The Public Domain Team  sourced a substantial allocation of bulbs from Parks Services and 
with assistance from both Ballymun and Finglas Community Teams distributed a parcel of 
bulbs to 120 Community and Environmental Groups in the last few weeks. This arrangement 
is always welcomed by the groups. 
 
 

                                  

 

Christmas tree lighting Finglas 
The Christmas tree lighting event will take place on Thursday 1st December at 5 p.m. in 
Finglas Village.  The event is being arranged by the Public Domain and Community Teams.  
Finglas Tidy Towns will be present on the evening with treats for everyone. Official 
invitations have been circulated.  

Page 32



 
Ballymun and Finglas Tidy Towns 
The North West Area representatives in the annual Tidy Towns competition did the area proud 
again this year getting favourable reports and increasing their scores when compared to 2021.   
Congratulations to Ballymun Tidy Towns who were the National Winner in the special category 
“Circular Economy Award”, a great achievement for Ballymun with an overall score increase 
from 308 in 2021 to 319 in 2022. Finglas Tidy owns marks also increased from 303 in 2021 to 
311 in 2022.   
These excellent results reflect the hard work carried out during 2022 by the Tidy Towns 
Groups in both areas.  Congratulations to both groups for their ongoing commitment and 
dedication.  The work undertaken is of immense value to the North West Area and Dublin City 
Council greatly appreciates their input and effort in the area. The Public Domain Team will 
continue to support the groups in any way possible. 
 

Seamus Ennis Road – New Path   
A new pedestrian pathway was installed beside the railings of the Scouts Hall, from Seamus 
Ennis Road to Ballygall Road West. This was a natural pathway in the grass which had a lot 
of traffic and in the winter turned into a very muddy area. This is a great improvement for 
pedestrians and the schools in the locality.  
 
 
 
 
Before         After  

  

                                        

  

 
Ballygall Road East – Planting Project  
The Public Domain team arranged for the enhancement by way of a planting project at the 
Lay By on Ballygall Road East. The residents welcomed the newly planted sensory plants 
and the removal of the containers.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Before          After                        

                                   

 
 
Art Project – Pump House Plunkett Crescent/Casement Road  
 An Artist was appointed for the enhancement of the Pump House on Plunkett 
Crescent/Casement Road.  This was an illegal dumping blackspot and a litter trap under the 
gates. The cladding of the gates will eliminate the litter trap and the art will hopefully deter 
the illegal dumping.  In consultation with the local Residents Committee an image was 
agreed and this is a welcome positive enhancement to the area. 
 
 
Before      After 

        

Chewing Gum Removal 
Extensive power washing was carried out at the following locations in Ballymun/Finglas 
concentrating on chewing gum removal. All work was carried out at times that would not 
impact on the businesses at these locations. 
 

Shopping Areas  

Supervalu, Main Street Ballymun  down to the swimming pool (coloured railings) on the 
Main Street 

The Centra on Shangan Road.  

Poppintree Parade  

Two Apartment entrances next to Macari’s Chipper on Shangan Road  

Supervalu, Seamus Ennis Road, Finglas  

Cardiffsbridge Shops  

Page 34



Barry Shops  

Sycamore Road shops  

Fitzmaurice Road and Autobahn Shops Glasnevin Avenue to be completed in 
November.  

 

 

 
 
Robert Ingram 
A/Public Domain Officer 
 

 

Page 35



 
 
 

 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 
 
Item No: 11 

 
 
 

North West Area Halloween Report  

 
As in previous years the Public Domain Team, Housing, Waste Management and Parks 
Services worked alongside Gardaí from Ballymun and Finglas as part of “Operation 
Tombola” to remove stockpiled material and reduce the negative impacts of bonfires in the 
area. This collaborative effort commenced on Saturday 22nd and concluded on the afternoon 
of 31st October. 
 
Cooperation between Dublin City Council and local Gardaí was key to the success of the 
operation this year, with minimal damage to public amenities reported.  
 
Waste Management Services have indicated that the total figure of stockpiled material 
collected was 441 tonnes citywide, which is an improvement on the 2021 figure of 515 
tonnes. 
 
Approximately 4000 information leaflets outlining the dangers of bonfires and listing Dublin 
City Council contact details to report locations of materials were distributed to householders 
in the vicinity of locations where bonfires have traditionally been set. 
 
Businesses in the industrial estates were visited by the Public Domain team, and advised on 
the need to secure bonfire materials in the weeks prior to Halloween. Regular inspections of 
vacant City Council properties and green areas were conducted by Public Domain and 
Housing staff throughout the NWA to check for the presence of stockpiling. 
 
In total, there were 25 bonfires, 11 in Ballymun and 14 in Finglas, the majority of which were 
minor, with minimal damage evident. The successful Amnesty Day, held in September, also 
significantly reduced the number of mattresses illegally disposed in the run up to Halloween.  
 
The clearing and cleaning of all bonfire sites has now been completed by Parks Services.   

Page 36



                                 

   

                             

Finglas Fright Night:  

The Finglas Halloween Festival “Finglas Fright Night,” took place on site at the Finglas Civic 

Centre from 6.00pm to 9.00pm. There was a wide variety of entertainment for the community 

to enjoy. On the night there were carnival rides, inflatable obstacle courses, magic from our 

local magician Colm Jolly, food, coffee and treat stalls, along with various old fashioned 

carnival games with prizes, face painters and balloon modellers. On the main stage the night 

kicked off with several performances from the children and young adults from the new band 

“The MC Warriors”. This is a very talented group from the Meeting Place Club with differing 

abilities and were a big hit on the night. There were brilliant performances from Finglas 

locals Darian Kavanagh Keating, MC Samra and the up and coming Finglas rapper and 

TikToker Cian Carey – Dubal C.  

 As the headline act, Ciaran Houlihan who is currently on his European Tour and considered 

to be one of the best Elvis Tribute acts in the world delivered a star performance while the 

crowd danced and sang along. 

Page 37



 

 

The Finglas Community & Social Development Section (CSDS) organised and managed the 

event with assistance on the night from other staff from the Area Office and the Finglas 

Sports & Fitness Centre and support from the Civil Defence and Order of Malta. 

 An Garda Síochána attended the event and with the assistance of the security company 

monitored the crowds throughout the festival site.   

   

The CSDS invited the local community groups to help with ticket sales for all the attractions. 

Ticket sales go towards the groups fund raising efforts. Twenty local groups took part this 

year, which totals over 100 volunteers from the local community. The combined amount 

raised this year was just over €5,500 for the Finglas Community Groups.   

 

Page 38

http://www.google.ie/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&sqi=2&ved=0ahUKEwivjdbBqorQAhUMBsAKHWBYBD0QFgghMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.garda.ie%2F&usg=AFQjCNEcmaiqYPkLnkkdp0MZqT-lBP8neg&bvm=bv.137132246,d.ZGg


  
 

 

Groups that took part this year: 

 Finglas Counselling Support   > Finglas Suicide Network 
 Finglas Men’s Sheds    > Sister Sheds 
 Erin’s Isle GAA Club    > Finglas Tidy Towns 
 Meeting Place Club    > Finglas South Combined Residents 
 Finglas Historical Society   > Ocras Éire                            
 Finglas West Summer Project   > Finglas West Scouts 
 Rivermount Summer Project   > Fuse Youth Club 
 WFTRA      > FAST 
 Finglas West Summer Project    > Dunsink Residents Group 
 St. Kevin’s & St. Josephs Summer Project > The Den Youth Club 

 
 
 
 
It should be noted that the success of the Halloween Festival depends on the input of so 

many dedicated volunteers.  

 

  
 

A special note of thanks to The Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy and the NWA Local 
Representatives for attending the Finglas Fright Night Event, which concluded with a 
fantastic Fireworks display from Mellowes Park.  

Page 39



 

 

 
 
 
 

Otherworld” Revamped Halloween Festival  
The Otherworld Halloween Festival took place across Ballymun with an amazing haunting 
week of spooky events, which included the Poppintree Park Witches Walk and Party, Puca 
Pooch, family dog walking event, spooky school, haunted tunnel, many family events and 
workshops in the Axis and Boiler-house. 
 
The Otherworld main event was a fantastic return to form, with family friendly spooky 
activities and entertainment. Lord Mayor Caroline Conroy officially opened the main event 
and presented Nathan Smith from Youthreach with an award for designing the new 
Otherworld Logo. On Halloween evening, there were a number of top class local artists on 
the main stage, including Dame Stuffy, Dextra and Sprig Break along with many others. 
Jamie Harrington was our local host and compare.  
   
 
Entire Families entered the Fancy Dress Completion and hundreds of people attended the 
celebrations in fancy dress to add to the festivities and atmosphere.   
       

 

 

 

 

Page 40



        

 
The Pulse Tent offered a stage for a wide variety of local artists to perform in a more intimate 
space and engage a smaller audience. The Little Monsters Tent was a huge hit with the 
younger generation who sang and danced the night away in a safe environment. The craft 
tent proved hugely popular with 1000’s of masks and crafts being handmade and displayed 
on the night.  
 
 
 

          
 
 
Circus Gerbola delivered an amazing display from suspended heights, which captivated the 
audience.  Their finale was show stopping and was followed by the much anticipated 
firework display.  
 
 
Groups that took part this year: Poppintree Youth Project, Easy Street, Youth Reach, 

Students from Trinity Comprehensive, The Sillogue Ladies Club, Ballymun Book Exchange. 

 

A special word of thanks goes to all the additional community volunteers who helped 

throughout the day 

and the night. 

 

Page 41



 

 

    

 

 
The Ballymun Community & Social Development team organised and managed the event in 
collaboration with the Otherworld Festival Committee and Axis.   
 
An Garda Síochána attended the event and with the assistance of the security company 
monitored the crowds throughout the festival site.  The Civil Defence also attended. 
  
It is estimated that in excess of 14,000 people attended both events over the three-hour 
period and the estimated total cost of running the events is circa. €180,000  
 
 
Mick Carroll and Jackie O’Reilly 
Area Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42

http://www.google.ie/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&sqi=2&ved=0ahUKEwivjdbBqorQAhUMBsAKHWBYBD0QFgghMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.garda.ie%2F&usg=AFQjCNEcmaiqYPkLnkkdp0MZqT-lBP8neg&bvm=bv.137132246,d.ZGg


 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 
 
Item No: 12 

 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

                                       Community Grants Scheme 2022                                 

Applications for financial assistance have been received from a number of bodies under the City Council's 

Community Grants Scheme 2022. 

These applications have been assessed in the context of available finance, value to the community and  
compliance with the relevant policies and objectives of the Council and in particular with relevance to the Social 
Inclusion Strategy. 
 
Set out below are details of the applications together with recommendations in relation to the amount of grant 

assistance for each applicant body. 

It is recommended that Dublin City Council make the grants to the groups as set out in the report below.  

There is provision in the 2022 budget to meet this expenditure. 

Dublin City Council's Community Grants are under review to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the 

Scheme. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Coilín O’Reilly 

Assistant Chief Executive 

 

Date:  15th November, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

  
AREA COMMUNITY GRANTS 2022 Ballymun  

 Number Group Name Category Amount 

A454SP3019 1-12 Knowth Court Community Development 350 

A237BG2783 Ard na Meala/Balcurris Garden 

Environmental Group 

Local area issues 450 

A144LA2646 Baile na Laochra Environmental 

Group 

Local area issues|Community 

Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & Intercuturalism 

450 

A344CJ2908 Ballymun Anseo School Completion 

Programme 

Social inclusion 500 

A545FA3096 Ballymun Book Exchange Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Local area issues|Adult 

Education 

€500 

A349AS2844 Ballymun Child and Family Resource 

Centre 

Community Development|Social inclusion €450 

A487AS3044 Ballymun Child and Family Resource 

Centre 

Community Development|Social inclusion €300 

A389AS2959 Ballymun Child and Family Resource 

Centre 

Community Development|Social inclusion €450 

A24OP2438 Ballymun Ladies' Club Social inclusion 450 

A87MN2552 Ballymun Library Writers Community Development 450 

A565SF3077 Ballymun Men's Shed Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues|Adult 

Education 

450 

A39MH2465 Ballymun pigeon racing club Community Development|Social inclusion 500 

A297CG2858 Ballymun Regional Youth Resource Community Development 450 

A325CG2891 Ballymun Regional Youth Resource Community Development 450 

A318OB2882 Ballymun United Football Club Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues 

450 

A317CM2866 Belclare Avenue Community project Community Development 400 

A270DV2822 Belclare Grove Environmental 

Group Lower 

Local area issues 450 

A188ML2707 Belclare lawns Community Development|Local area 

issues 

450 

Page 44



A80FS2544 Belclare Lawns Environmental 

Group|Belclare Lawns 

Environmental Group 

Local area issues 400 

A227MB2774 Belclare Park Residents Association Local area issues|Social 

inclusion|Community Development 

400 

A353SS2916 Belclare People Local area issues|Community 

Development 

400 

A25MA2443 Belclare Place Residents Local area issues|Integration & 

Intercuturalism |Social 

inclusion|Community Development 

400 

 Pending Belclare Way Residents Assoc Community Development|Local area 

issues 

400 

A287CG2845 BRYR - girl power conference Integration & Intercuturalism |Social 

inclusion 

350 

A289CG2848 BRYR - Josh Dunne memorial 

tournament 

Local area issues|Community 

Development|Social inclusion 

400 

A442CG2919 BRYR - Running Festival Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues|Adult 

Education 

400 

A285CG2843 BRYR - script writing group Social inclusion 400 

A158WH2665 C&N dance academy Social inclusion 300 

A558KA3100 City Farm and Community Gardens 

Ballymun 

Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & Interculturalism 

450 

A293DM2854 Coultry Avenue Environmental 

Group 

Local area issues €450 

 Pending Coultry Craft Group Community Development| Social 

inclusion| Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues 

€400 

A238KT2784 Coultry Way Tidy Town Committee Community Development|Local area 

issues|Social inclusion 

€400 

A273BJ2737 Creative heArts Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & Intercuturalism 

|Adult Education 

400 

A55TO2497 Cromlech Court Community Development 400 

A313 S2875 Cumann Báire Setanta Community Development 400 

A226CT2766 Doon & Bloom Local area issues 400 

Page 45



A425OS2985 Doon Court Environmental Group Community Development|Local area 

issues 

400 

A295NS2857 Glasnevin North Active Retirement 

Association 

  450 

A466MK2779 Global Action Plan Social inclusion|Community Development 450 

A76MR2515 Gossip girls Local area issues 400 

A312ME2874 Hair Together CLG Local area issues|Community 

Development|Social inclusion 

450 

A503CM2527 Holy Spirit Boys National School Community Development 450 

A229 P2775 Joe's Patch Local area issues 400 

A195BK2715 Kerala Badminton Club Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

450 

A480CA2508 Knowth Court 52-62 Community Development|Social inclusion 400 

Pending Ladies Knitting Social Club Community Development| Social 

inclusion|Integrationa & Intercuturalism 

400 

A6HA2388 Men's Networking Resource Centre 

of Ireland Ltd 

Social inclusion|Local area issues 600 

A342IM2743 MIND Ireland  Social inclusion 450 

A366CC2932 Northside Sensations Recreation Adult Education 400 

A358FE2921 Owensilla Flower Patch Local area issues 400 

A412CS2977 Poppintree Environmental Project 

Clg 

Social inclusion||Community 

Development 

400 

A421ML2668 Poppylane Community Development 450 

A75DK2535 Residents of Upper Belclare grove 

40- 21 

Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues 

450 

A288BP2849 Sandyhill Environmental Group Local area issues|Community 

Development|Social inclusion 

450 

A397FA2969 Sallowood Community Development|Social inclusion 450 

A133WL2631 Solas Development Centre Community Development|Social inclusion 450 

A189TD2709 Sports Across Ireland Integration & Intercuturalism 450 

A203LE2607 St Joseph’s SNS HSCL Ballymun Community Development 450 

A283BN2513 St Margaret’s Traveller Community 

Association 

Community Development||Social 

inclusion 

650 

Page 46



A302BS2864 St. Joseph’s Church Community Development||Local area 

issues 

250 

A10WW2392 St. Margaret’s Preschool Social inclusion 500 

A97MF2563 St. Pappins Bowls Club Community Development 500 

A207BJ2650 TC Grower Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area issues||Adult 

Education 

450 

Pending The Druids Community Development| | Social 

inclusion|Local area issues 

400 

A118MS2608 The Golden Age Community Group Community Development||Social 

inclusion|Integration & Intercuturalism 

450 

A532WE3086 The Reco Youth Centre, Ballymun Social inclusion 450 

A56WL2495 The Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre Community Development|Social inclusion 400 

A347WL2914 The Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre Community Development|Social inclusion 400 

A275BJ2826 Woodhazel environmental group Community Development|Social 

inclusion||Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area issues||Adult 

Education 

400 

A276BJ2738 Woodhazel headbangers Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area issues||Adult 

Education 

400 

TOTAL      €30,000 

 

 AREA COMMUNITY GRANTS 2022 Finglas  
 Number Group Name Category Amount 

A314BG2833 Feed Our Homeless Social inclusion|Community 

Development 

400  

A490BE2562 Finglas Maypole Festival Social inclusion 200  

A281FC2839 Beneavin Resident Association Community Development|Local 

area issues|Social inclusion 

400  

A13FG2403 Fairways Residents Association Community Development|Local 

area issues 

400  

A499BE2997 Buion Gemma Brigins and 

cygnets|Buion Gemma Brigins and 

cygnets 

Social inclusion|Community 

Development| Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

500  

Page 47



A198DS2706 Meetingplace club affiliated with 

the Arch federation 

Adult Education||Community 

Development|Social inclusion 

400  

A139KN2640 Glenhill Residents Committee Community Development|Adult 

Education|Social inclusion 

1000  

A271AM2823 Finglas West Active Retirement 

Assoc 

Social inclusion 500  

A190ML2710 Glasnevin Downs Residents 

Association 

Community Development 400  

A631NJ3106 Wadelai Hillcrest and District 

Residents Association 

Community Development 500  

A112BD2601 Fuse youth club Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Local area issues 

600  

A402BM2831 Rising Voices Choir, Odin's Wood 

Day Centre 

Community Development||Social 

inclusion||Adult Education 

200  

A380OB2950 Ballygall Community Council Ltd Local area issues 1000  

A514RH2721 The Finglas Concert & Marching 

Band 

Community Development||Social 

inclusion||Local area 

issues|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

350  

A100KR2567 Willows Football Club Community Development 300  

A443SS3013 St Canice’s Indoor Bowls club Community Development|Social 

inclusion 

500  

A140RJ2641 Lakeglen Residents Association Community Development 400  

A625BL2992 75th East Finglas Scouts Social inclusion 500  

A492BE3050 Community Music Collective Social inclusion 200  

A568PF3076 Fairlawn Prospect Hill Community 

Garden 

Social inclusion|Community 

Development|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

500  

A219MW2696 Broadstone FC Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area issues 

250  

A220MW2757 Finglas responders cert Community Development|Adult 

Education|Local area issues 

500  

A41TM2471 St Canice’s Court Residents 

Association 

Local area issues 200  

A509DG3067 The den youth group Community Development 600  

A263KM2813 Glenhill Music Group Social inclusion 300  

Page 48



A457MP2730 Glasanaon Gardening Club Community Development 300  

A173DS2688 Meeting place club affiliated with 

the Arch federation 

Community Development|Social 

inclusion 

500  

A182DJ2504 Griffith Crescent senior citizens 

group 

Social inclusion 400  

A339BA2903 ST. Canice’s parochial hall Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area 

issues|Adult Education 

1000  

A204BP2729 Finglas Tidy Towns Local area issues 700  

A278GE2832 Griffith Area Community 

Association 

Social inclusion|Community 

Development|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area issues 

1000  

A73CP2532 Dublin bridge Irish volunteers 

history and re-enactment group 

Adult Education||Social 

inclusion|Local area issues 

700  

A396WD2835 Oakwood Avenue/Sycamore Park 

Environment Group 

Community Development 400  

A261DK2811 Willow Park Crescent RA Local area issues|Community 

Development 

400  

A524GM3081 Ballygall women’s group Adult Education|Community 

Development|Social inclusion 

500  

A348LE2911 Pleasure Painters Social inclusion|Community 

Development 

500  

A539ML3094 The Stephen Moylan Foundation Local area issues 550  

A34KS2460 Mellowes Park Junior Parkrun Integration & 

Intercuturalism||Social 

inclusion||Community 

Development 

300  

A167HM2679 Afternoon Tea Dance Group Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

350  

A272AM2824 West Finglas tenants and resident 

association 

Community Development|Social 

inclusion 

1000  

A260KM2810 Men’s Shed Community Development 400  

A259KM2809 Kilshane Court residence 

association 

Community Development 400  

Page 49



A616HM3145 Finglas south combined residents 

association 

Local area issues|Social 

inclusion|Community 

Development|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Adult Education 

400  

A153RW2662 Wellmount Residents Community Development||Social 

inclusion 

400  

A401OB2971 76th/122nd Finglas West Scouts Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism |Community 

Development||Adult Education 

500  

A413EL2982 Finglas Historical Society Community Development|Local 

area issues 

550  

A262KM2812 Pool Club Merville Court Social inclusion 300  

A510FS3070 Valley Park United Community Development 300  

A482BC3043 Merville Gardiners Community Development|Social 

inclusion 

350  

A299BM2861 Finglas Parent  and Toddler Group 

X2 

Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

1000  

A432BM3006 Early Bird Breakfast Club Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism|Local area issues 

600  

A362RD2863 Scribblestown Residents 

Association 

Community Development|Local 

area issues 

400  

A93HP2531 Tolka Rovers Basketball Club Community Development 250  

A295NS2857 Glasnevin North Active Retired Social inclusion 350  

A502OB2506 Order of Malta Ambulance Corps - 

Ballygall Unit 

Social inclusion|Community 

Development|Local area 

issues|Adult Education|Integration 

& Intercuturalism 

500  

A590LJ2925 Glasilawn Avenue Residents 

Association 

Local area issues 400  

A566CC2705 Sunshiney days Youth Group Community Development 400  

A305EA2816 Ni Anglais Irish Dancers Adult Education 300  

Pending Finglas Cricket Club Community Development| Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Interculturalism| 

400  

Page 50



Pending Finglas Counselling Services Community Development| Social 

inclusion| Integration & 

Interculturalism|Adult Education 

500  

Pending Griffith Neighbourhood, Ballygall Community Development 400  

Pending Tolka Rovers Indoor Bowling Club Social Inclusion 400  

Pending Glasilawn Road Environment Group Community Development 400  

Pending  Tolka Trout Anglers Recreation 400  

TOTAL     €30,000  

 

 

 INFORMAL ADULT EDUCATION 2022  
Number Group Name Category Amount 

A364CC2930 Northside Sensations Adult Education 800 

A18BJ2426 Norah and Josie’s kitchen Adult Education 800 

A581KA3109 Muck and Magic Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

800 

A391GS2742 Ballymun Socials Social inclusion 800 

A286BP2846 Ballymun U3A Social inclusion 800 

A89MN2553 Ballymun Library Writers Adult Education 800 

A243NB2792 Ballymun Men’s Centre Group Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism 

800 

A186GM2542 Poppintree Youth Project Social inclusion|Local area issues 800 

A435CD3008 Setanta Strings Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Local area 

issues|Adult Education 

800 

A578MA3111 National Learning Network the hub Adult Education|Social inclusion 800 

A584SF3121 The Ballymun Men's Shed 

Association 

Social inclusion|Integration & 

Intercuturalism|Adult Education 

800 

A534RG2386 Ballymun Active Disability Interest 

Group (BADIG) 

Social inclusion 800 

A146WL2649 The Sillouge Neighbourhood 

Centre 

Community Development|Social 

inclusion|Adult Education 

800 

Page 51



A101KV2572 Sillouge Ladies Club Community Development||Social 

inclusion||Adult Education 

800 

A161MS2670 The Golden Age Community Group Community Development||Social 

inclusion||Adult Education 

800 

TOTAL      €12,000 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 52



 

 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2022 
 
 
Item No: 16 

 
 

 

Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report as at 15/10/2022  

North West Area Committee Meeting 15/11/2022 

 

 

Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request Statistics 

 

 

 

 

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 

 

Stage 1 0 

Stage 2 34 

Stage 3 0 

Stage 4 14 

Stage 5 7 

Appeal 0 

 

General traffic service requests not requiring Statutory Orders. 
 
Total Non Tag requests received since previous 
report 

7 

Total Non Tag requests currently open on 
Confirm. 

19 

 

No. TAG Requests received since previous report  
7 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 
55 

Page 53



 

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 

Explanation of Stages: 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / 

businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, 

etc 

 

Fergal Mc Kay, Assistant Staff Officer.Administration/Transport Advisory Group 
T: 222 3781 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 
 

Page 54



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report
25/10/2022

55 Items

Status

Page 1 of 3

1 7013547 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) P&D Parking If we could introduce a 2 hour free parking
for customers but thereafter a pay and
display option would stop the all day parking
that is currently occurring.

30/01/2020 11:22:012

2 7019685 BARRY AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming Speed Ramps from the Barry Ave and
Plunkett Green intersection, to Plunkett Ave
intersection with Casement Road

29/03/2021 11:07:202

3 7019823 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) TAG General Engineer Query a full traffic assessment of the area and we
would like to progress this as soon as
practical.  To be effective it would have to be
during term time and hopefully after most of
the Covid restrictions have been lifted.

06/04/2021 09:38:192

4 7019895 HAZELCROFT ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Traffic Calming/Speed Measures 09/04/2021 09:10:162

5 7019900 DUNSINK DRIVE (NW) Traffic Calming Ramps or other traffic calming measures 09/04/2021 12:18:402

6 7019901 PLUNKETT AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming Additional ramps 09/04/2021 12:28:342

7 7019906 GROVE PARK AVENUE (NW) Speed Ramps to slow traffic 12/04/2021 09:04:082

8 7019908 WILLOW PARK ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Can traffic calming measures be put in place
urgently in order to slow traffic down and
make the estates liveable and safe for all
residents.

12/04/2021 09:20:082

9 7019910 WADELAI ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming traffic management measures being
considered.

12/04/2021 09:34:572

10 7020955 SAINT JOSEPH'S WAY (NW) Traffic Calming Along the road 08/06/2021 10:24:312

11 7021089 DUNSINK GREEN (NW) Speed Ramps Speeding is taking place on Dunsink Green
can ramps please be examined

15/06/2021 09:31:232

12 7021394 WILLOW PARK GROVE (NW) Speed Ramps  to protect the junction with Pinewood Drive,
and either end of the green on Willow Park
Grove.

30/06/2021 14:12:062

13 7021999 CEDARWOOD ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps Motorists are taking this blind turn at such a
speed, there is genuine concern for
residents safety

06/08/2021 10:07:072

14 7022352 WILLOW PARK CRESCENT
(NW)

Traffic Calming Is it possible please to have ramps
reinstalled or heightened? We don't want
Willow Park Crescent turned into a main
road.

27/08/2021 12:57:212

15 7022521 MELLOWES PARK (NW) Speed Ramps Can speed ramps please be
examined/improved on Mellowes Park

08/09/2021 08:41:062

16 7022529 BALBUTCHER LANE (NW) Traffic Calming arrange for a speed survey to be taken at
and to consider any further measures that
might assist in reducing the speed of cars on
that road.

09/09/2021 09:49:142

17 7022532 BALLYGALL PARADE (NW) Traffic Calming to arrange for a traffic survey to be carried
out at  in respect of speeding and
rat-running, including a review of the spacing
of the existing ramps as residents express
serious concern regarding high speeds, high
volumes and the use of scramblers

09/09/2021 10:31:282

Page 55



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report
25/10/2022

55 Items

Status

Page 2 of 3

18 7022674 SHANLISS AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming No Left turn off Shanliss Ave with ramps
No Right turn off shanliss road onto shanliss
drive.
Both options in conjunction with TWO
RAMPS.
Close Off one end of road.

16/09/2021 09:28:112

19 7022717 CARRIG ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming We are requesting ramps for traffic calming 20/09/2021 11:33:082

20 7022900 MCKEE AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming Additional ramps /traffic calming 30/09/2021 08:53:532

21 7022964 GRIFFITH ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Traffic calming i.e speed ramps or returning
the road to a cul de sac

05/10/2021 08:56:482

22 7023949 GLASANAON ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Something will have to be done regarding
the speeds in residential areas this cannot
go on.

02/12/2021 09:11:352

23 7023950 SANDYHILL GARDENS (NW) Traffic Calming Can this part of Sillogue Road be examined
for suitable traffic calming

02/12/2021 09:22:462

24 7024019 FAIRLAWN ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps Please install Ramps at entrance and along
Fairlawn Road, or wherever you would deem
appropriate to stop the dangerous and
reckless speeding along the road.

08/12/2021 10:34:332

25 7024349 DANE ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming to consider ramps or other traffic calming
measures on Dane Road leading up the
church as the cars are coming down that
road very fast.

11/01/2022 17:33:072

26 7024797 SAINT HELENA'S ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Traffic calming and safety measures for
Saint Helena's Road, for bend coming from
The Scout's Den towards Kippure Park.

08/02/2022 11:46:582

27 7025297 ABBOTSTOWN ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Can speed ramps be examined for
Abbotstown Road , motorists are using it as
a rat run to avoid the traffic lights on
Cappagh Road

04/03/2022 13:07:322

28 7025320 DUNSINK AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming Better and additional ramps 07/03/2022 08:52:452

29 7026496 SAINT PAPPIN ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming are any traffic management measures being
considered.

06/05/2022 08:37:522

30 7026677 BALLYGALL PARADE (NW) Traffic Calming Chicanes or proper ramps need to be
installed! Better still build a way just before
the maisonettes.

13/05/2022 12:52:422

31 7027248 GATEWAY CRESCENT (NW) Traffic Calming A mirror opposite but this might be
vandalised, or traffic calming just before
Wad River Close.

13/06/2022 11:36:542

32 7028856 OLDTOWN PARK (NW) Traffic Calming a ramp at the area marked in yellow and
double yellow line at the area marked red on
the attached map would resolve the issue

05/09/2022 09:46:052

33 7028894 RATHVILLY ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming Could ramps be put up on road ( always
scramblers flying up and down )
Clear Yield sign put up at the top of the
Rathvilly Road.

06/09/2022 14:05:212

34 7029081 GATEWAY AVENUE (NW) School Warden At the junction of Ballymun Road. New road
opening

14/09/2022 14:29:222

35 7007528 BALLYGALL ROAD EAST (NW) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing for safety of
school-goers.

20/02/2019 16:43:004

Page 56



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report
25/10/2022

55 Items

Status

Page 3 of 3

36 7019909 HILLCREST PARK (NW) Traffic Calming request traffic calming. 12/04/2021 09:29:004

37 7022611 WELLMOUNT CRESCENT
(NW)

Speed Ramps Can ramps be examined for Wellmount
Crescent to reduce speeding

14/09/2021 09:21:334

38 7023396 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) P&D/Permit Parking Review parking measures and markings. 26/10/2021 18:08:464

39 7027797 BARRY PARK (NW) TAG General Engineer Query requesting children at play or slow down sign 12/07/2022 08:18:274

40 7027850 CARTON DRIVE (NW) Speed Ramps requesting ramps. 13/07/2022 13:31:364

41 7028742 GATEWAY CRESCENT (NW) Double Yellow Lines DYLs to prevent parked vehicles from
reducing visibility for oncoming traffic and
pedestrians.

25/08/2022 16:38:494

42 7029183 CRANOGUE ROAD (NW) Parking Restrictions Double yellow lines 21/09/2022 09:00:384

43 7029499 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) TAG General Engineer Query Can a solid white line be considered from
Ballymun Road as far as the junction with
Glasnevin Drive.

10/10/2022 08:39:234

44 7029534 BELCLARE PARK (NW) Speed Ramps Speed ramps along straight section of
Belclare Park to prevent speeding by
scramblers.

10/10/2022 13:19:014

45 7029541 SAINT CANICE'S ROAD (NW) Double Yellow Lines to join up with existing dyl's on junction of
Ballymun Road.

10/10/2022 16:22:254

46 7029560 MELLOWES AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming request traffic calming for Mellowes Avenue. 11/10/2022 12:15:494

47 7029564 SYCAMORE ROAD (NW) ITS Right Turn Filter Light review the operation of the traffic lights at
(details supplied) to allow for a filter light for
traffic turning into the industrial estate from
the northern direction.

11/10/2022 14:56:064

48 7029575 GLASNEVIN DRIVE (NW) Bus Stop Infrastructure double yellow lines for length of white centre
line at Glasnevin Avenue junction.

12/10/2022 10:35:424

49 90047648 SP_36503 FARNHAM DRIVE (NW) 3.5 Tonne Limit on Farnham Drive from the junction with
Wellmount Road to the gates of Erin's isle.

13/02/2017 13:02:405

50 7017355 FITZMAURICE ROAD (NW) Loading Bay on the road 13/10/2020 12:55:535

51 7019260 BALBUTCHER LANE (NW) TAG General Engineer Query From poppintree/balbutcher lane turn into
belclare view and head towards the
shops/centra. When you approach the bend
in the road there is no centreline/lane
markings at all.

01/03/2021 08:31:515

52 7026568 COULTRY ROAD (NW) School Warden Crossing Box children crossing point does not have any
markings.

10/05/2022 15:24:445

53 7027149 RATOATH ROAD (NW) TAG General Engineer Query install road signage which alerts drivers to
the possibility of traffic coming from Dunsink
Lane onto Ratoath Road, and any other
measure found suitable.

08/06/2022 12:15:285

54 7027521 BALBUTCHER LANE (NW) Loading Bay Loading bay to prevent parked cars from
hindering deliveries.

27/06/2022 16:43:105

55 7027813 SILLOGE ROAD (NW) P&D Parking (Rescind) on the north sde of the road near Ballymun
Road junction to facilitate a Taxi Rank.

12/07/2022 16:45:405

Page 57



Page 1 of 3

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

02/11/2022
North West Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 15/11/2022)
9 Items

1 7019909 HILLCREST PARK
(NW)

Dublin 11Traffic Calming request traffic calming. 7CouncillorRecommended 2 No.  speed surveys were requested for Hillcrest Park on
09/12/2021, The first speed Survey between Nos 162 and 176
Hillcrest Park yielded an 85th percentile of 38.7km/h. The second,
between No. 70 Hillcrest Park and Ballygall East Road, yielded an
85th  percentile of 33.2km/h.

The speed survey carried out on 09/12/2021 on St. Pappin Road
yielded an 85th percentile of 43.9km/h.

The area engineer has added both roads to his list of areas in
Dublin North West for potential traffic calming. The area engineer
will be recommending roads at the end of 2022 for potential traffic
calming measures. The recommendations are based on the
budget assigned to the area engineer at the start of 2023.
To be added to future works programme

12/04/2021

2 7022611 WELLMOUNT
CRESCENT (NW)

Dublin 11Speed Ramps Can ramps be examined for
Wellmount Crescent to reduce
speeding

0CouncillorNot
Recommended

Not recommended - Following an assessment, it was found that
the road does not have a straight run of at least 200m.
The criteria for the installation of ramps are:
 •The road should have a straight run of at least 200 metres.
 •The 85th percentile speed should be greater than 50 km/h.
 •Traffic volumes should exceed 60 vehicles per hour.
 •There should be genuine road safety concerns, based either on

actual accident statistics or on observed road safety patterns, or a
written report from an inspector of the Traffic Division of the local
Garda Síochána, relating to an issue of safety.
As the road does not meet the criteria, speed ramps were not
recommended

A 30km/h speed sign has been provided at the roundabout at
Belmont Road and Wellmount Avenue. The road is passively
traffic calmed with on-street parking.

If residents still feel parking is an issue, they may wish to apply for
a pay and display/permit parking
scheme
(https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/parking-dublin-city-centre/start-parking-scheme).”
.

14/09/2021

P
age 58



Page 2 of 3

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

02/11/2022
North West Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 15/11/2022)
9 Items

3 7027850 CARTON DRIVE (NW) Dublin 11Traffic Calming requesting traffic calming. 0CouncillorNot
Recommended

The pedestrian crossing at the junction of R104 and Saint
Margaret’s Road is due to be completed Q1/Q2 2023.

Following an assessment by the area engineer, it was found that
Carton Way does
not have straight run of at least 200m.

The criteria for the installation of ramps are:

• The road should have a straight run of at least 200 metres.
• The 85th percentile speed should be greater than the posted
speed limit.
• Traffic volumes should exceed 60 vehicles per hour.
• There should be genuine road safety concerns, based either on
actual accident statistics or on observed road safety patterns, or a
written report from an inspector of the Traffic Division of the local
Garda Síochána, relating to an issue of safety.

As the road does not meet the criteria, speed ramps are not
recommended at this location.

13/07/2022

4 7029183 CRANOGUE ROAD
(NW)

Dublin 11Parking
Restrictions

Double yellow lines 0CouncillorRecommended Not recommended for double yellow lines – following an on-site
visit, double yellow lines were deemed inappropriate for Cranogue
Road. However, to prohibit parking at this location, an extension
to the single white line is recommended.
STAT: On Cranogue Road, from the junction with Belclare View
(Balbutcher Lane), install a single white line (RRM 001), in a
northeasterly direction, for 25m, until the junction with Cranogue
Close
STAT: On Cranogue Road, at the junction with Belclare View
(Balbutcher Lane), install a stop line (RRM 017).
On Cranogue Road, at the junction with Belclare View (Balbutcher
Lane), install a worded stop marking (M114).

21/09/2022

5 7029499 BALLYMUN ROAD
(NW)

Dublin 9TAG General
Engineer Query

Can a solid white line be
considered from Ballymun Road
as far as the junction with
Glasnevin Drive.

0CouncillorNot
Recommended

Not recommended – Following an on-site visit no issues with
regards to vehicles overtaking on Glasnevin Avenue, between
Ballymun Road and Glasnevin Drive was observed. There is
approximately 120m solid white line westbound from Ballymun
Road on Glasnevin Avenue. There are 228m of broken white lines
from the solid white line to pedestrian crossing located 22m east
of Glasnevin Road. The broken white lines have been provided to
preserve the ability to overtake legally while also warning those
overtaking of a potential hazard while doing so.
The area engineer will continue to monitor this stretch of
Glasnevin Road for any changes in traffic flows. Instances of
dangerous driving should be reported to the local Gardai.

10/10/2022

P
age 59



Page 3 of 3

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

02/11/2022
North West Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 15/11/2022)
9 Items

6 7029534 BELCLARE PARK
(NW)

Dublin 11Speed Ramps Speed ramps along straight
section of Belclare Park to
prevent speeding by scramblers.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Not recommended - Following an assessment, it was found that
the road does not have a straight run of at least 200m.
The criteria for the installation of ramps are:
 •The road should have a straight run of at least 200 metres.
 •The 85th percentile speed should be greater than the posted

speed limit.
 •Traffic volumes should exceed 60 vehicles per hour.
 •There should be genuine road safety comcerns, based either on

actual accident statistics or on observed road safety patterns, or a
written report from an inspector of the Garda Traffic Division,
Dublin Castle relating to an issue of safety.
As the road does not meet the criteria, speed ramps were not
recommended.
An Garda Síochána need to be contacted to address the issues of
danger to residents on Belclare Park caused by scramblers.

10/10/2022

7 7029541 SAINT CANICE'S
ROAD (NW)

Dublin 11Double Yellow
Lines

to join up with existing dyl's on
junction of Ballymun Road.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Not recommended – following an on-site visit, no parking issues
were identified. Double yellow lines have been provided to prevent
parking near to the junction with Ballymun Road. Further
restrictions would impinge on the free parking amenity for
residents and only shift parking further west into Saint Canice’s
Road. As such, double yellow lines were not recommended for
Saint Canice’s Road.
If residents still feel parking is an issue, they may wish to apply for
a pay and display/permit parking
scheme
(https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/parking-dublin-city-centre/start-parking-scheme).

10/10/2022

8 7029560 MELLOWES AVENUE
(NW)

Dublin 11Traffic Calming request traffic calming for
Mellowes Avenue.

0CouncillorRecommended A speed ramp has already been provided on Mellows Avenue
40m from the bend at the west end of the road. However, to
remind drivers of the 30kph speed limit, traffic calming in the form
of two slow road markings will be provided on Mellowes Avenue.

On Mellowes Avenue, provide slow road markings (M 106) under
public lighting standards 8 and 11 facing east and south
respectively.

11/10/2022

9 7029564 SYCAMORE ROAD
(NW)

Dublin 11ITS Right Turn
Filter Light

review the operation of the traffic
lights at (details supplied) to
allow for a filter light for traffic
turning into the industrial estate
from the northern direction.

1CouncillorNot
Recommended

Not recommended - following an assessment the area engineer is
unable to recommend the provision of a right turn filter light to
allow traffic to enter Finglas Business Centre. The provision of
such a filter light would require the expansion of the junction to
accommodate a right turn filter lane. The area engineer has a
finite budget which would not cover the substantial civil works
required to recommend the Councillors request.

11/10/2022

P
age 60



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

11128127 Q47 NWAC 15.11.22

"North Road

"

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

weeding and a review of the additional 

bollards etc. at (details supplied).

Details: North Road 02/11/2022 15:52

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128126 Q42 NWAC 15.11.22 Grove Park Road

To ask the Manager to provide an update 

on the reinstatement of the ramps at 

(details supplied)

Details: Grove Park Road, the road was 02/11/2022 15:50

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128125 Q41 NWAC 15.11.22 10 Cranogue Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the carriageway at (details 

supplied)

02/11/2022 15:48

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128124 Q38 NWAC 15.11.22

Jamestown Road, close 

to the Sycamore Road 

junction

To ask the Manager for information about 

the two blue road maintenance containers 

newly arrived at  [details supplied], the 

purpose for them being there and when it 

is expected that they will be moved.  

 

Details: Jamestown Road, close to the 02/11/2022 15:44

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128123 Q35 NWAC 15.11.22

Behind Cranogue 

Islands, Balbutcher 

Land,

To ask the Manager for an update on the 

landscaping and the installation of 

bollards at [details supplied].

 

Details: Behind Cranogue Islands, 02/11/2022 15:42

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128122 Q29 NWAC 15.11.22 Farnham Crescent

To ask the Manager to arrange for a 

section of the footpath alongside 

Farnham Drive GAA pitch to be repaired. 

Heading north towards Farnham 

Crescent there is a section between the 02/11/2022 15:39

2-Passed to 

Engineer

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

P
age 61



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11128121 Q26 NWAC 15.11.22

landing between 301A 

and 305 Casement 

Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

tarmac landing between 301A and 305 

Casement Road to be completely 

resurfaced. This has been requested 

previously but is now a serious health and 02/11/2022 15:37

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128119 Q22 NWAC 15.11.22 Stormanstown Road

To ask the Manager to investigate 

solutions to the rising problem of joyriding 

on (details supplied). Can the kerbing be 

changed to make entry on to the green 

more difficult.

Details: the green in Stormanstown Road, 02/11/2022 15:34

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128118 Q17 NWAC 15.11.22

"38 Willow Park Road

"

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the repair of the footpath at 

(details supplied) It is in very poor 

condition.

Details: 38 Willow Park Road 02/11/2022 15:32

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128117 Q13 NWAC 15.11.22 Clonmel Road

"To ask the Manager if resurfacing work 

is due to take place on (details supplied).  

Several sections of the road are in very 

poor condition.

Details: Clonmel Road 02/11/2022 15:29

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11128116 Q12 NWAC 15.11.22

at the junction of 2 

Pinewood Grove with 

Pinewood Drive.

To ask the Manager to provide an update 

on the repair of the footpath at the 

junction of 2 Pinewood Grove with 

Pinewood Drive. The pavement is quite 02/11/2022 15:26

2-Passed to 

Engineer

P
age 62



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11128004

Q116 NWAC 

07.11.22 Glasnevin Downs

"To ask the Chief Executive to review the 

roundabout at the entrance to (details

supplied). Can the wildflower planting be 

reseeded as grass as it is easier to 

maintain?         

Is it possible to repair the cracked kerbing 

in the centre of the roundabout and repair 

the red tarmac surface where it is 

gravelling?

27/10/2022 08:56

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11127993 Q93 NWAC 07.11.22

Barry Park and Green, 

Finglas West

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

an inspection the footpaths at (details 

supplied) with a view to repair or being 

added to the works programme.

 26/10/2022 14:44

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11127979 Q56 NWAC 07.11.22

Scribblestown to 

Campbells Bridge

To ask the Chief Executive if there is a 

survey of pedestrian dishing ongoing? 

Can attention be given to the entrance to 

Avila Park where there is none at the 

crossing on Ratoath Road and also to the 

section of road from Scribblestown to 26/10/2022 12:47 Enquiry Resolved

11127643 Q51 NWAC 18.10.22 1 Dean Swift Road

"To ask the Manager to arrange for 

dishing at (details supplied) which is a 

DCC property. The tenant is on the list 

but her daughter uses a wheelchair and 

she would like a timeframe.

Details: 1 Dean Swift Road 17/10/2022 14:18

3-Inspection 

Required

11127328 Q52 NWAC 18.10.22

Sycamore Park, from 

no. 2-12 on both sides 

of the road.

To ask the Manager to inspect the 

pavements on (details supplied) 

Details: Sycamore Park, from no. 2-12 on 

both sides of the road 06/10/2022 02:36

Added to 2022 Contracts - 

Potential Additional Works

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 63



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11127327 Q45 NWAC 18.10.22 Clonmel Road

"To ask the Manager to inspect the 

carriageway at (details supplied) with a 

view to being added to next year’s work 

programme. 

Details: Clonmel Road 07/10/2022 09:52 Enquiry Resolved

11127325 Q43 NWAC 18.10.22 Glasnevin Park

"To ask the Manager to inspect the 

carriageway at (details supplied) with a 

view to being added to next year’s work 

programme. 

Details: Glasnevin Park 05/10/2022 15:17

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11127324 Q37 NWAC 18.10.22 38 Clune Roa

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

inspection of the footpaths at (details 

supplied) with a view to repair.

12/10/2022 15:00 Job No 41120998 6-Job Raised

11127446 Q27 NWAC 18.10.22 Finglas Road

To ask the Manager to outline the plans 

for upgrading the cycle path along the 

Finglas Road which is practically non- 11/10/2022 11:11

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11127323 Q25 NWAC 18.10.22 Scribblestown Green

To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection to the road surface at 

Scribblestown Green and for any works 

necessary in bringing it up to standard to 

be seen to as soon as possible. Can the 06/10/2022 02:35

Scribblestwon is not in charge to 

DCC

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11127322 Q23 NWAC 18.10.22 130 Cedarwood Road,

To ask the Manager to fill in the very 

dangerous hole left after the removal of a 

tree at [details supplied] as this was 

originally requested in January and no 

action has been taken.

 

Details: Outside 130 Cedarwood Road, 

Finglas East. The residents car is often 

parked over the hole for safety reasons 06/10/2022 02:38 Referred to Parks

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

P
age 64



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11127321 Q22 NWAC 18.10.22 Hillcrest Park estate

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

path around the green open space in the 

Hillcrest Park estate to be repaired due to 

a number of defects identified by 05/10/2022 15:04

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11127320 Q20 NWAC 18.10.22

outside the old cinema 

in Finglas.

To ask the Manager to repair the roadway 

at the bus stop outside the old cinema in 06/10/2022 02:36 Added to 2022 Asphalt Contract 6-Job Raised

11127319 Q19 NWAC 18.10.22 1  Oakwood Avenue

To ask the Manager to give a report on 

the water leak at [details supplied] as 

there has been a constant leak there for 

at least a year and although the path and 

road have been dug up and reinstated 

four times, the leak is still as bad as ever. 

06/10/2022 02:34 IMU/Irish Water

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11127318 Q8 NWAC 18.10.22 at Shangan Shops.

To ask the Manager when the works will 

commence on the footpaths at Shangan 

Shops. There has been a lot of accidents 

in this area due to the condition of the 10/10/2022 14:41

Works are being coordinated 

with Plaza redevelopment. 

Project currently under review by 

City Landscape Architect. Enquiry Resolved

11126436 Q43 NWAC 20.09.22 Westwood Road

To ask the Manager to repair or replace 

the speed bump at the entrance to 

Westwood Road, Finglas, as it is in very 04/10/2022 14:41 6-Job Raised

11126937 Q97 NWAC 03.10.22

The pathway around the 

green on Hillcrest Park, 

Glasnevin

To ask the Chief Executive if he will 

inspect the pathway around the green at 

(details supplied) with a view to adding it 

to the works programme for 2023. 

Details: The pathway around the green on 

Hillcrest Park, Glasnevin 04/10/2022 14:35

An inspection will be carried out 

at this location with a view for 

potential inclusion on the 2023 

programme of works. If we are 

unable to include this location, 

any localised defects will be 

added to our asset management 

system and addressed by DCC 

Crews on a priority basis.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 65



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11126935 Q98 NWAC 03.10.22 Glasnevin Avenue

"To ask the Chief Executive if he will 

arrange for the repair of the brick work at 

the roundabout on (details supplied).

Details: Glasnevin Avenue

" 04/10/2022 14:33

The main roundabout on 

Glasnevin Ave does not have a 

Brick surround – there is a 

concrete kerb which has been 

damaged, unless another 

location can be specified. 

Glasnevin Ave is a busy impact 

level 3 road, which carries 

certain restrictions to working 

hours to minimise traffic 

disruption. To reinstate the kerb 

would require lane closures 

among other traffic restrictions.

The damage to the concrete 

kerb surrounds does not 

currently pose a hazard and is 

primarily an aesthetic issue. As 

such this is currently a low 

priority concern for RMS. 

It has been logged for repair and 

will be addressed in due course.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126435 Q31 NWAC 20.09.22 26 Oakwood Park

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the footpath at (details supplied).

Details: 26 Oakwood Park

" 04/10/2022 14:35

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126434 Q30 NWAC 20.09.22

Westwood Road, 

Finglas South

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the ramp at (details supplied). 

There is a badly damaged ramp as you 

enter.

04/10/2022 14:36 6-Job Raised

P
age 66



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11126433 Q17 NWAC 20.09.22 Clancy Avenue

To ask the Manager to repair the road 

entering the cul-de-sac on Clancy 

Avenue, the road is badly broken beside 

the planter. 04/10/2022 14:44

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and a defect 

logged onto our asset 

management system for repair.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126432 Q15 NWAC 20.09.22 Sallowood View

To ask the Manager to repair the potholes 

at Sallowood View, previously reported. 12/10/2022 15:28 6-Job Raised

11126431 Q19 NWCM 20.09.22 34 Druid Court

To ask the Manager can the gap between 

the slabs outside (details supplied) be 

filled in properly. This needs to be fixed 

urgently, there are people with mobility 

issues living near this area and it has 04/10/2022 14:36 Not for RMS - Housing issue.

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11126424 Q14 NWAC 20/09/22 Oakwood Road

To ask the Manager to investigate the 

footbaths on Oakwood Road as they are 

in a very poor condition and to give a 

timeline for repairs. 04/10/2022 14:27

A preliminary review was 

recently carried out on Oakwood 

Road. Consideration is being 

given to include Oakwood Road 

on an additional minor works 

contract. 

This is subject to the provision of 

additional funding and 

finalisation of a list of candidate 

locations. 

If this Road is not included, 

localised defects have been also 

logged for repair by DCC Direct 

labour crews.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126423 Q52 NWAC 20/09/22 76 Hillcrest Park

To ask the Manager to provide an update 

on the repair of the footpath at 76 

Hillcrest Park, enquiry ref 2841220. 04/10/2022 14:31

A job has been raised for this 

defect and is awaiting 

assignment to a crew. Due to 

the current backlog in repairs, it 

is not possible to confirm an 

exact time to completion.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 67



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11126934 Q72 NWAC 03.10.22 Tolka Valley Road

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the footpaths on Tolka Valley Road to be 

properly maintained. The grass along the 

edge is creeping across the footpath for a 

lot of parts. 04/10/2022 14:34

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11126422 Q3 NWAC 20/09/22 Glasanaon Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

footpath on Glasanaon Road from 

Johnstown Park Playground to 

Fitzmaurice Road shops to be 

resurfaced. This part of the road has a lot 

of footfall and is in a poor condition. 04/10/2022 14:26

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location. The footpath 

was found to be in a reasonable 

condition for large stretches. 

There were a number of 

localised defects encountered, 

these have been logged onto 

our asset management system 

for repair.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126421 Q7 NWAC 20/09/22 66 McKee Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

footpath at (details supplied)  be repaired. 

It is in a very bad state of disrepair. There 

are a lot of elderly people who use this 

area and it has the potential as a trip 04/10/2022 14:30

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and a defect 

logged onto our asset 

management system for repair.  

4-Inspection 

Completed

11126420 Q4 NWAC 20/09/22 17 Casement Grove

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

footpath at (details supplied) to be 

repaired as it is badly broken up and had 12/10/2022 15:24 6-Job Raised

11126054

Q126 NWAC 

05.09.22

Ratoath Road Dublin 11 

between Dunsink Lane 

and Scribblestown

To ask the Chief Executive to inspect and 

repair the road surface on Ratoath Road 

Dublin 11 between Dunsink Lane and 25/08/2022 12:08

2-Passed to 

Engineer

11126053

Q127 NWAC 

05.09.22

Glasilawn Road, Dublin 

11

To ask the Chief Executive Can the 

manager inspect the pavements (details 

supplied) 

Details: Glasilawn Road, Dublin 11 with a 12/10/2022 15:07

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 68



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11125779 Q37 NWAC 05/09/22 801 Ratoath ?Road

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the concrete landing (details supplied) to 

be re-surfaced. The surface is very 

uneven and dangerous in poor weather 

conditions.

 17/08/2022 13:54

3-Inspection 

Required

11125609 Q18 NWAC 05.09.22

Mellows Road and parts 

of Mellows Avenue.

"To ask the Chief Executive for an update 

on the roads maintenance works 

programme for 2022 and can he say 

whether there will be any resources 

available to finish works to footpaths at 

top of (details supplied)

Details: Mellows Road and parts of 12/09/2022 12:18

"

Additional funding has been 

sourced to allow works to 

continue in Mellowes Avenue 

and Mellowes Road. Works are 

due to commence here in the 

coming weeks. 

" Enquiry Resolved

11125557 Q16 NWAC 05.09.22

Farnham Drive between 

no’s 1 and 19

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the footpaths on (details supplied) to be 

resurfaced. This was requested many 

times over the years and yet the opposite 

side was done recently.

Details: Farnham Drive between no’s 1 

and 19

" 12/09/2022 12:17

The footpaths between No 1 & 

19 were reviewed prior to the 

footpath works across the road 

commencing. Whilst they are 

aged and have begun to 

degrade, they were not in a 

similar condition to the opposite 

footpaths to justify replacement.

They can be reviewed again as 

part of the 2023 works 

programme to see of inclusion is 

warranted. If they are not 

included on future works 

programmes, localised defects 

will be logged for repair by DCC 

crews. Enquiry Resolved

P
age 69



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11124815 Q46 NWAC 19.07.22 Prospect Hill

"To ask the Manager can a bin be put 

near the Bus stop near Prospect Hill and 

to create a path at this bus stop. 

22/07/2022 14:40

3-Inspection 

Required

11124537 Q48 NWAC 19.07.22 behind Hillcrest Estate

To ask the Manager can the containers 

behind Hillcrest Estate be moved. As it is 

a safety risk to people walking, it’s also a 

litter hotspot and very noisy in the 12/09/2022 12:08 Container moved Enquiry Resolved

11124534 Q41 NWAC 19.07.22

50 Kildonan Road, 

Finglas

To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection of the pathway outside (details 

supplied). This location was repaired last 

year but the pathway appears to be rising 

again due to the tree. 

12/09/2022 11:42

Job 41152489 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124532 Q39 NWAC 19.07.22

Gortmore Ave between 

No's 28 & 29.

16, Gortmore Drive

13, Carrigallen Road

All of the above have 

been reported 

previously. 

I reported 16, Gortmore 

Drive.

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

inspection of the pathways below and 

roadways in Lakeglen estate, Finglas 

South with a view to repair and 

consideration for the works programme. 

Footpath issues trip hazards & broken 

footpaths:

Gortmore Ave between No's 28 & 29.

16, Gortmore Drive

13, Carrigallen Road

All of the above have been reported 

previously. 

I reported 16, Gortmore Drive.

Potholes:

1, Gortmore Road & 10, Gortmore Road. 12/09/2022 11:46

Job 41152495 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

P
age 70



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11124513 Q43 NWAC 19.07.22

Glasilawn Road /Tolka 

Estate

To ask the Manager to provide an update 

on the reply given to question 70 of the 

Dublin City Council monthly meeting in 

November 2021 in relation to signage on 

Glasilawn Road, see below for reference: 

Question to the Chief Executive                           

Council Meeting 1st November 2021

Q.70    COUNCILLOR KEITH 

CONNOLLY

E&T     To ask the Chief Executive 

following on from question 50 on the 7th 

of December 2020 to provide an update 

on the following: There has been no 

progress on the issue of Signage on 

(details supplied 1), despite first being 

reported 10 months ago.

There has been no progress on changing 

the signage/additional signage on (details 

supplied 2) as promised, when will this be 

put in place?

1.	Can the manager assist with the 

purchasing of a cast iron sign in 

conjunction with the environmental group.

2.	Can a site visit be arranged to review 

the signage on the road. 

Details 1: Glasilawn Road /Tolka Estate

Details 2: Glasilawn Road

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPLY: 

There has been a general delay in 

purchasing new and replacement street 12/09/2022 11:51 8-Job Completed

P
age 71



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11124512 Q41 NWAC 19.07.22

50 Kildonan Road, 

Finglas West.

To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection of the pathway outside (details 

supplied). This location was repaired last 

year but the pathway appears to be rising 

again due to the tree. 

12/09/2022 11:34

Job 41152489 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124511 Q37 NWAC 19.07.22

4, 6 and 8 

Cardiffsbridge Avenue, 

Finglas.

To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection of the pathways at (details 

supplied) with a view to repair. 

12/09/2022 11:51

Job 41152492 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124508 Q35 NWAC 19.07.22

Maolbuille Road (from 

no 18 upwards)

"To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection of the pathways at (details 

supplied) with a view to repair. 

Details: Maolbuille Road (from no 18 12/09/2022 11:47

Job 41152411 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124507 Q16 NWAC 19.07.22 Belclare Crescent

To ask the Manager to repair the ramps 

on Belclare Crescent which were 

scheduled several years ago. 12/09/2022 12:04

Job 41156209 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124506 Q5 NWAC 19.07.22 16 Gortmore Drive

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

footpath at (details supplied) to be re-

instated as it is badly broken.

 

Details: 16 Gortmore Drive 12/09/2022 12:07

Job 41152495 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11124504 Q1 NWAC 19.07.22 40 Cedarwood Grove

"To ask the Manager to arrange for work 

to the footpath outside (details supplied) 

where the resident has reported cracks 

and an uneven surface.

 

Details: 40 Cedarwood Grove 12/09/2022 11:37

Job 41152487 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

P
age 72



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11123768 Q33 NWAC 04/07/22 Shangan Shops

To ask the Chief Executive for an update 

on the repairs works on the footpaths 

outside Shangan shops following on from 12/09/2022 12:06

Coordination ongoing with Plaza 

redevelopment works.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11123707 Q23 NWAC 04.07.22

Finglas Road cycle 

path, from St. 

Philomena’s Road to 

Ballyboggan Road

To ask the Chief Executive if he is aware 

of the uneven and unsafe surface of the 

Finglas Road cycle path, from St. 

Philomena’s Road to Ballyboggan Road 

that is forcing cyclists onto pedestrian 

space? Will the Manager advise when the 28/06/2022 07:55 Looged twice on Confirm. Enquiry Resolved

11123394 Q2 NWAC 21/06/22 Baile Na Laochra

To ask the Manager to arrange for name 

signs to indicate the estate Baile Na 

Laochra’s location. There's 2 entrances 

off Balbutcher Lane but no signs to say 

Baile Na Laochra. 04/10/2022 14:42

"The roads and footpaths for 

Baile Na Laochra have not been 

taken in charge so there is not 

currently a location where RMS 

could erect a sign. 

The developer must also comply 

with relevant planning conditions 

regarding the naming of the 

development. 

"

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11123268 Q24 NCAC 20/06/22

Northern end of Santry 

Road

To ask the manager to provide a timeline 

for the resurfacing of the remaining 

carriageway along the northern end of the 

main Santry Road and to indicate all 

communications to utility companies to 

ensure the future new carriageway will 17/06/2022 14:44 Already replied to councillor Enquiry Resolved

11124530 Q30 NWAC 19.07.22 Sycamore Park

To ask the Manager to repair the potholes 

on Sycamore Park, close to the junction 

with Sycamore Road in Finglas East. 12/09/2022 11:49

Job 41152486 - Job Closed, 

Done by Work Crew Enquiry Resolved

P
age 73



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11123076 Q85 NWAC 13/06/22

Dunsink Lane onto 

Ratoath Road

To ask the Chief Executive to improve the 

safety for vehicles turning from Dunsink 

Lane onto Ratoath Road by removing 

overgrown foliage blocking the view for 

drivers at this dangerous junction on a 

bend, install road signage which alerts 

drivers to the possibility of traffic coming 04/10/2022 14:30

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11123075

Q110 NWAC 

13/06/22 184 Mellowes Road

"To ask the Chief Executive if a full 

inspection of the footpath and the tree 

outside

CRES 	(details supplied) will be carried 12/09/2022 12:03

4-Inspection 

Completed

11123074

Q117 NWAC 

13/06/22 79 McKee Road

"To ask the Chief Executive can an 

update be provided on the repair of the 

pavement at (details supplied)?

12/09/2022 11:55 8-Job Completed

11123073 Q118 NCAC 13/06/22 134 Willow Park Grove

To ask the Chief Executive can an update 

be provided on the repair of the pavement 

at (details supplied) as the tarmac is 

significantly raised by a tree route and is 12/09/2022 11:53 6-Job Raised

11123343 Q30 NWAC 21.06.22 5/6/7 Glasanaon Park

"To ask the Manage to arrange for the 

repair of the pathway at (details supplied) 

Details: 5/6/7 Glasanaon Park 

" 12/09/2022 11:50

"An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and the 

defect logged for repair. Repairs 

will be carried out subject to 

crew availability and other 

competing priority repairs.  

Consideration will be given to 

include Glasanaon Park in future 

works programs. 

"

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 74



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11123342 Q26 NWAC 21.06.22 Mellowes Road

"To ask the Manager if an inspection of 

the remaining pathways on Mellowes 

Road can be arranged with a view to 

repair and inclusion on next year’s work 

programme. 

" 12/09/2022 11:48

Site inspections have already 

been completed with a view to 

carrying out the remaining works 

in this year’s program, subject to 

additional funding. Any works 

remaining will be carried into the 

2022 program. Enquiry Resolved

11123341 Q25 NWAC 21.06.22 108 Finglas Road

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pathway outside (details 

supplied)

Details: 108 Finglas Road 12/09/2022 11:46

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 75



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11122813 Q25 NWCM 13/06/22 Finglas Road

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the potholes on the main Finglas Road 

between Charlestown junction and Lidl 

roundabout to be repaired or the road re-

instated. 12/09/2022 11:45

Further information is required 

on the location of the defects 

noted. Finglas Road ends at the 

roundabout adjacent to 

Mellowes Park – where it then 

turns into the North Road (R135) 

before coming to a junction with 

Charlestown Place. There is no 

Lidl on this section of roadway. 

There is a Lidl accessible from a 

roundabout just off the Finglas 

Road on St Margarets Road 

(R104) which also runs up to a 

junction with Charlestown Place. 

This road is part shared with 

Fingal County Council. 

Once the correct location is 

established, a site inspection will 

be carried out and any defects 

noted for repair.

3-Inspection 

Required

P
age 76



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11122087 Q61 NWAC 17/05/22 Sycamore Park

To ask the Manager to remove one of the 

road name signs at [details supplied]

Details: At the entrance to Sycamore 

Park there are two road name signs in the 

grass, one at either side of the road, and 

an additional road name plate at the 

gable wall at 58 Sycamore Road.  

Residents would like the road name sign 

in the grass beside 58 Sycamore Road 

removed. 09/05/2022 09:12

This question was raised and 

answered in November 2021 

(Q27). Please see response 

issued at the time which still 

stands. 

RMS will not remove the free 

standing name plates unless 

there is a valid safety reason. 

The two signs at street level 

serve to direct motorists coming 

from East and West along 

Sycamore Road. Whilst there is 

a third house mounted sign, 

there is a large tree adjacent to 

number 58, which can obscure 

the view of this sign for 

oncoming motorists and 

pedestrians.

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11122084 Q46 NWAC 17/05/22

"Cardiffsbridge just near 

where there is building 

of four new houses

"

To ask the Manager can a large hole on a 

path be urgently dealt with.  It is a 

dangerous trip hazard. (details supplied) 09/05/2022 09:11

This defect occurred within the 

construction boundary of the 

new housing development. A 

site inspection was carried out 

and the contractor contacted to 

commence a repair urgently. 

This will be monitored to ensure 

compliance.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 77



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11122083 Q44 NWAC 17/05/22 Westpark Drive Estate

"To ask the Manager can the hole in the 

laneway be urgently repaired (details 

supplied)

Details: laneway at Westpark Drive 

Estate and Scout hall on Ballygall Road 

East

" 10/06/2022 13:35

"

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and the defect 

logged for repair. A temporary 

repair will be carried out as soon 

as possible pending the 

permanent repair. 

 Defects will be addressed 

based on priority and crew 

availability. 

"

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122081 Q34 NWAC 17/05/22 Beaneavin Park

"To ask the Manager to repair the road 

surface on Beneavin Park at the 

green/junction with Beneavin Road as it is 

very badly cracked and dangerous.

10/06/2022 13:34

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and the defect 

logged for repair. Defects will be 

addressed based on priority and 

crew availability.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122079 Q28 NWAC 17/05/22 39 McKee Avenue

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pathway outside (details 

supplied).

" 09/05/2022 09:09

Can the address be confirmed? 

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and no defect on 

the footpath or roadway was 

visible.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122078 Q24 NWAC 17/05/22 76 Cappagh Avenue

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pathway outside (details 

supplied).

Details: 76 Cappagh Avenue, Finglas 09/05/2022 09:07

A site inspection was carried out 

at this location and a defect 

logged for repair. Timeline for 

completion of repair will depend 

on crew availability and other 

competing priorities.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122077 Q23 NWAC 17/05/22]

Outside the crèche on 

Griffith Road, Finglas 

East.

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the badly damaged carriageway 

at (details supplied).

" 10/06/2022 13:33

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and the defect 

logged for repair. Defects will be 

addressed based on priority and 

crew availability.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 78



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11122076 Q22 NWAC 17/05/22 Plunkett Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for a 

repair of the tarmac in the cul de sac at 

(details supplied)

Plunkett Road, as you can see from 

below it is in a bad state of disrepair 10/06/2022 13:32

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and a number of 

defects were logged for repair. 

The general surface area has 

begun to deteriorate and will be 

considered for potential 

inclusion on the list of works for 

the 2023 resurfacing works 

program.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122075 Q12 NWAC 17/05/22 13-24 Termon Court

To ask the Manager to arrange for the re-

instatement of the path exiting (details 

supplied) where the weeds have grown 

over parts of the path, it is very uneven 

and in poor condition, especially for the 

elderly residents there. 10/06/2022 13:31

An inspection was carried out at 

this location. The concrete 

footpath was found to have 

degraded and a defect has been 

logged for replacement of this 

section. Due to current 

workloads, a timeline for 

completion of the works cannot 

be confirmed presently.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11122074 Q9 NWAC 17/05/22 Westpark Drive

"To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection of the road and footpaths in 

(details supplied) where there are lots of 

areas in need of repair or re-instatement. 

12/10/2022 15:07 Job no 41158010, 41158012 6-Job Raised

11121950 Q81 NWAC 09.05.22

The Barry Shops, 

Finglas.

To ask the Chief Executive following on 

from question 52 of the July 2020 when 

will the potholes be repaired in the car 

park at (details supplied)

06/05/2022 12:24

Hotbox due on site by W/E 

13/05/22 6-Job Raised

P
age 79



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11121947 Q80 NWAC 09.05.22 26 Barry Park.

To ask the Chief Executive following Q63 

of the January Council meeting when will 

the wall be repaired at (details supplied). 

Details: Across from 26 Barry Park. This 

has been raised as a council question 

and as an area committee question , it 06/05/2022 12:25

Wall is the responsibility of the 

Parks Dept

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11123340 Q11 NWAC 21.06.22 61-72 Druids Court

"To ask the Manager to confirm when the 

paving slabs at (details supplied)   will be 

completed. The works began in March 

but just stopped without finishing the job. 

Could a full update on the paving works 

still to be completed in the Courts be 

provided

12/09/2022 11:42

Maintenance of the path ways 

inside the various Courts are the 

responsibility of the Housing 

Dept. RMS cannot provide an 

update on these works Enquiry Resolved

11123338 Q7 NWAC 21.06.22 :7 Oakwood Road

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

path at (details supplied) to be re-instated 

where there is a couple of lips where the 

concrete has lifted and several people 

have tripped because of this.

Details:  7 Oakwood Road 12/09/2022 11:41

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and the 

defect logged for repair. Repairs 

will be carried out subject to 

crew availability and other 

competing priority repairs.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 80



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11121343 1A NWAC 19.04.22 Ratoath Road

That the Area Manager provide a plan for 

the upgrade of Ratoath Road (between 

Ratoath Avenue and Westwood Road). 

Can the Manager take a walk/drive along 

this stretch and say he is happy with the 

condition of this section of road under his 

remit.

Report

Contact:

Tel:

Email:		

Question to the Area Manager			North 

West Area Committee

							Meeting Tuesday 18th 

January 2022

Q.39	Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager for an update on 

Ratoath Road upgrade (Ratoath Avenue 

to Westwood Road)

Reply

Unfortunately there are no available 10/06/2022 13:28

"

Road Maintenance Services 

carried out a preliminary review 

of this location. It was noted that 

there is no footpaths along this 

stretch of road. Road 

Maintenance Services only have 

funding to maintain existing 

carriageways and footpaths. It is 

outside the scope of our 

department to carry out 

feasibility study/ design works/ 

construction for new footpaths or 

drainage upgrades at this 

location.

We will however carry out a 

carriageway inspection and 

schedule any pothole repairs 

required when a works crew is 

available in the area.

"

3-Inspection 

Required

P
age 81



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11121335 Q40 NWAC 19.04.22 164 Hillcrest Park

"To ask the Manager to repair the 

footpath at (details supplied) as the 

pavement at 163 was recently repaired 

but a hazard remains next to it.

Details: 164 Hillcrest Park 06/05/2022 12:26 6-Job Raised

11121333 Q20 NWAC 19.11.22 126 Cappagh Avenue

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the pathway repairs to (details 

supplied).

Details: 126 Cappagh Avenue 05/05/2022 11:26 8-Job Completed

11121332 Q19 NWAC 19.11.22 Northway Park

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the pathway repairs to (details 

supplied). 

Details: 107 to 109 Northway Park 05/05/2022 11:36 Job Raised - 41109653 6-Job Raised

P
age 82



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11121331 Q15 NWAC 19.11.22

outside the shops in 

Shangan

To ask the Manager when the footpaths 

outside the shops in Shangan will be 

replaced. 05/05/2022 12:27

In the original 2022 footpath 

plan, I had included the paths 

from the bus stop , past the 

shops up to the Civic Plaza. 

From conversations with the 

local area office, this plan has 

been amended. There is a 

housing development being 

planned near the green area 

and the Civic plaza is due to be 

refurbished. Therefore we will 

hold off on this stretch until 

these works are completed. This 

is to avoid damage to new 

footpaths and to also see what 

the final scheme plans are. 

The section on the other side of 

Ballymun road (Balcurris Road) 

will be completed this year 

however.

9-Respond to 

Customer

11121220 Q7 NWAC 19.04.22 Mellowes Road,

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

road surface in front of the WFTRA bus 

stop on Mellows Road to be repaired 

properly. This part of the road has been 

temporarily repaired many times over the 

last few years and is continuously broken 

up and has tarmac pieces strewn all 

along the road and footpath adjacent. A 

permanent repair is needed. 10/06/2022 13:25

Road Maintenance Services will 

consider adding this location to 

our annual major works program 

for resurfacing if resources 

allow. These works will most 

likely take place in the third 

quarter of the year. In the 

meantime an inspection will be 

scheduled by the area engineer 

and a pothole repair scheduled if 

required when a works crew is 

available in the area.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 83



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11121053 Q26 NWAC 04.04.22

Termon Courts, 

Poppintree, Dublin 11

To ask the Chief Executive can safety 

bollards be put in place to protect houses 

at (details supplied) due to stolen cars 

crashing into houses on this stretch.

04/04/2022 10:18

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11120900 Q95 NWAC 04/04/22 9 Cremore Crescent

To ask the Chief Executive to inspect the 

pavement at 9 Cremore Crescent, Dublin 

11 and advise if it is on a list for repair? 13/09/2022 10:56

Job 41146291 - Job Closed, Job 

has been allocated to Work 

Crew Work Crew Enquiry Resolved

11120897 Q91 NWAC 04.04.22 Barry Drive

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the ramps on (details supplied) to be 

repaired/replaced. They are the red brick 

ramps and are in a very poor state of 

repair.

" 04/04/2022 13:32

"These ramps have been 

inspected and provisionally 

included on a list of ramps for 

reconstruction as part of the 

2022 annual works program. 

Please note that a number of 

requests for ramp rehabilitation 

have been received this year. 

Not all of these can be 

accommodated within the 2022 

program of works in order to 

keep within the programme 

budget. Ramps will be 

addressed on a priority basis. 

"

4-Inspection 

Completed

11120896 Q90 NWAC 04/04/22 109 Berryfield Road

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the roads and footpath adjacent to 

(details supplied) to be repaired/ 

resurfaced. There are potholes in the 

road and the grass verge is in a poor 

state. 04/04/2022 13:27

In response to this query, an 

inspection has been carried out 

at the above location. Several 

carriageway defects were noted 

and logged for repair. 

The grass verge has been 

damaged by residents driving 

across it for access.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 84



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11120882 Q65 NWAC 04/04/22

McKelvey Road and 

Avenue

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

an inspection of the footpaths at (details 

supplied) with a view to carrying out 10/06/2022 13:25

3-Inspection 

Required

11120849 Q36 NWAC 04/04/22

between Owensilla and 

Scoil on tSeachtar 

Laoch

To ask the Chief Executive to add the 

small portion of footpath to the works in 

Sillogue between Owensilla and Scoil on 

tSeachtar Laoch.  It is a small stretch of 

footpath that is in very bad repair and the 

residents there have had to deal with the 04/04/2022 10:20

Road Design & Construction 

carrying out work at Silloge, 

Footpath noted is included within 

their works

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11120074 Q22 NWAC 15/03/22 Beneavin Park

To ask the Manager if a road safety issue 

can be address at (details supplied)  

Details:

•	The road surface is in a very poor state 

at Beneavin Park, outside Nos 12/13/14 

and the exit out of the estate

•	The pot hole is now like a sink hole 

which floods with water; The tarmac has 

made it worse;

•	One resident cannot park his car on the 

street due to cars trying to avoid the

      sink hole.

•	The lack of road sweeping has added to 

the problem as the water cannot flow into 04/04/2022 13:24

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and the 

defect listed for repair. 

Completion of repair is 

dependent on crew availability 

and other competing priorities.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11120072 Q46 NWAC 15/03/22

Mellowes Avenue and 

Mellowes Road

To ask the Manager for an update on 

footpath repairds to (details supplied) 

where they are in particularly bad 

condition in some parts 04/04/2022 13:23

Mellows Road has been 

included on this year’s annual 

works program. Some localised 

sections of Mellows Avenue 

have also been included.  

Tender documents are currently 

being prepared and are due to 

be issued in the coming weeks. 

" Enquiry Resolved

11120070 Q34 NWAC 15/03/22 24 Maolbuille Road

To ask the Manager provide an update on 

the repair to the footpath at 24 Maolbuille 04/04/2022 13:22 6-Job Raised

P
age 85



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11120069 Q33 NWAC 15/03/22 2 Grove Wood

To ask the Manager to inspect the 

pavement at 2 Grove Wood, Dublin 11 as 

the tree appears to be overgrown and 

causing damage to the pavement, which 04/04/2022 13:22 8-Job Completed

11120068 Q19 NWAC 15/03/22 Glasnevin Avenue

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the repair of the surrounds at 

(details supplied)

At the roundabout on Glasnevin Avenue" 04/04/2022 13:20

Investigations are ongoing to 

establish the course of action to 

take on the roundabout. 

Glasnevin Ave is a busy impact 

level 3 road, which carries 

certain restrictions to working 

hours to minimise traffic 

disruption. To reinstate the kerb 

would require lane closures 

among other traffic restrictions. 

The damage to the concrete 

kerb surrounds does not 

currently pose a hazard and is 

primarily an aesthetic issue. As 

such this is currently a low 

priority concern for RMS.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11120065 Q17 NWAC 15/03/22

Jamestown 

Road/McKee Aveue

To ask the Manager to provide an update 

on the pooling of water on the 

carriageway outside the Barbers on 

Jamestown Road/McKee Avenue. 04/04/2022 13:19

"

An investigation revealed that an 

adjacent gully had become 

blocked. This was cleaned out to 

resolve the issue. 

"

Resolved - No 

Further Action

P
age 86



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11120056 Q11 NWAC 15/03/22 64 Tolka Estate

To ask the Manager to reinstate the dip 

on the pathway around the green at 

(details supplied)

Details: Tolka Estate, the dip was not 

reinstated during recent pavement works, 

directly across from 64 Tolka Estate. 04/04/2022 13:17

From consulting record 

photographs, the dip in the 

footpath that existed prior to the 

new footpaths being installed 

was the result of localised 

settlement of the kerbs. There is 

no evidence of this being 

intended as a crossing point 

onto the path. Recent works 

have seen the installation of 

three dishing’s around the 

perimeter of the Park. One of 

which is only 30m from this 

location. 

There are no plans for additional 

works in this area.

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11120290

Q10 NWACM 

15/03/22

Courts Laneways in 

Poppintree

To ask the Manager for an update on the 

improvements in the Courts Laneways in 

Poppintree after the successful pilot in 04/04/2022 13:16 Referred to Housing

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11120055 Q8 NWAC 15/03/22 Shangan Road

To ask the Manager to repair the ramp on 

Shangan Road at the traffic lights, there 

are a number of holes in it and it is a very 04/04/2022 13:14

Ramps added to 2022 Wprls 

Program

4-Inspection 

Completed

11119507 Q21 CM 07/03/22 NORTH ROAD

To ask the Chief Executive to review the 

footpaths and road on North Road 

Finglas for remedial work and to also 

ensure there are regular clean ups of this 

area. 10/06/2022 13:19

North Road has been 

provisionally included in the 

2023 program of works for 

roadway resurfacing. An 

inspection will be carried out on 

the footpaths and any defects 

added to our database for 

repair, pending crew availability 

and competing priorities.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 87



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11119808 Q72 CM 07/03/22 Glasnevin Park

To ask the Chief Executive to carry out an 

assessment of the carriage way in 

(details supplied) with a view to repair, 04/04/2022 13:13 6-Job Raised

11118911

Q45 NWACM 

15/02/22

cycle lanes along the 

Finglas Road which run 

from Finglas down past 

Glasnevin cemetery

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

upgrade of cycle lanes along the Finglas 

Road which run from Finglas down past 

Glasnevin cemetery. This section of road 

has been left in a poor state for a very 

long time. 04/04/2022 13:02

Please note that this section of 

road encompasses approx. 

6.4km of cycle tracks. Can more 

specifics be given to areas that 

require attention and an 

inspection will be carried out. 

For reference, the R135 (Finglas 

Rd) is in the NW Area from 

Finglas village to the Old Finglas 

Road.

9-Respond to 

Customer

11118903 Q47 NWAC 15/02/22

Wellmount Green and 

Crescent

"To ask the Manager to arrange for an 

inspection and repair/re-instatement of 

the footpaths in Wellmount Green and 

Crescent where they are in a really poor 

condition.

06/05/2022 12:28

Consideration to be given to 

include Wellmount Green & 

Crescent in 2023 Annual Works 

Program

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118902 Q5 NWAC 15/02/22 Dunsink Avenue

To ask the Manager to arrange to 

resurface the road on Ratoath Drive 04/04/2022 12:58

Ramps added to 2022 Works 

Program

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 88



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11118901 Q8 NWAC 15/02/22

To ask the Manager to arrange to 

resurface the road on Ratoath Drive 

where there are a number of potholes. 04/04/2022 12:54

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location. The road is 

generally in a fair condition and 

does not currently require full 

resurfacing. A number of 

localised defects were noted 

and have been logged for repair. 

Due to the current backlog of 

works, it is not possible to 

confirm a timeline for the 

completion of the repairs.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118900 Q12 NWAC 15/02/22

Mellowes Road outside 

the WFTRA

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pothole at (details supplied).

Details:  Mellowes Road just outside the 

WFTRA centre 

" 04/04/2022 12:53

"An inspection has been carried 

out at this location and a defect 

has been logged onto our asset 

management system for repair. 

It will be addressed in order of 

priority and crew availability. 

"

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118899 Q15 NWAC 15/02/22 71 Wellmount Road

To ask the Manager to examine the 

possibility of putting bollards or another 

mechanism at (details supplied) to stop 04/04/2022 12:50 Referred to TAG

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

P
age 89



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11118898 Q14 NWAC 15/02/22 Finglas Park

To ask the Manager to carry out an 

assessment of the roadway throughout 

(details supplied). Parts of which are 

sinking. 04/04/2022 12:45

An inspection has been carried 

out at this location. A number of 

localised defects were noted 

and have been logged for repair.

Due to the current backlog of 

works, it is not possible to 

confirm a timeline for the 

completion of the repairs.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118897 Q20 NWAC 15/02/22

106 – 144 Ballygall 

Road West

To ask the Manager to arrange a site visit 

to (details supplied) to look at options for 

the tarmac area, which is very unsightly. 06/05/2022 12:29

Investigations underway to look 

at regreenign sections of the 

tarmac area.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118896 Q17 NWAC 15/02/22

91 Willow Park Grove, 

Glasnevin

To ask the Manager to carry out an 

assessment of the pathway at (details 04/04/2022 12:43 6-Job Raised

11118895 Q30 NWAC 15/02/22 61 Pinewood Crescent

"To ask the Manager to repair the 

footpath at 61 Pinewood Crescent. 

" 06/05/2022 12:40

4-Inspection 

Completed

11118894 Q29 NWAC 15/02/22 15 Grove Park Road

"To ask the Manager to repair the 

footpath at 51 Grove Park Road as it is 

raised and poses a trip hazard.

13/09/2022 11:31

Job 41125715 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11118622 Q62 CM 07/02/22 Glasnevin Avenue

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

a repair of the brickwork on the 

roundabout (details supplied).

Details: Glasnevin Avenue. 04/04/2022 12:00

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 90



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11117936 Q43 NWAC 18.01.22

Ratoath Road, north of 

Kilshane Road

To ask the Manager  to improve the 

safety at Ratoath Road, north of Kilshane 

Road so that people in the homes in the 

travelling community on Ratoath Road 

and Dunsink Lane can safely travel to 

and from their homes as currently there is 

no footpath or safe pedestrian route and 

is an unacceptable risk for residents and 

to give an update to progress on this 

issue as it has been raised before with 

both Dublin City Council and Fingal 04/04/2022 10:26 Issue not for RMS

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11117934 Q39 NWAC 18.01.22 Ratoath Road

To ask the Manager for an update on 

Ratoath Road upgrade (Ratoath Avenue 04/04/2022 10:29 Not RMS area of responsibilty

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11121075 Q68 NWAC 04/04/22 Willow Park Crescent

To ask the Chief Executive the process 

for erecting masts in the city and if a 

report can be issued on the one recently 

erected at (details supplied) of which no 

public reps or local area office were 

informed. 

30/03/2022 08:38 Enquiry Resolved

11117877 Q16 NWAC 18/01/22 Willow Park Crescent

To ask the Manager to provide a report 

on the new electricity box on Willow Park 

Crescent, did it require permission and 12/09/2022 12:27 Reply attached Enquiry Resolved

11117876 Q45 NWAC 18/01/22

Finglas Park/McKee 

Road junction, at 

junction with No. 9 

To ask the Manager to repair a pothole at 

the Finglas Park/McKee Road junction, at 

the southern junction close to number 9 18/05/2022 14:59

This is already on a works list 

and will be done in due course, Enquiry Resolved

11117875 Q36 NWAC 18/01/22

a) Abbotstown Avenue, 

b) Westwood Road

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

ramps on the following roads to be 04/04/2022 10:46

4-Inspection 

Completed

11117873 Q35 NWAC 18/01/22 Mellowes Avenue

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

footpaths on (details supplied) to be 

inspected and repaired where necessary. 04/04/2022 10:51

A potion of defects were added 

to 2022 Program of Works.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 91



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11117872 Q33 NWAC 18/01/22 301 Casement Road

"

To ask the Manager  to arrange for the 

tarmac landing in front of 301 Casement 

Road to be re-surfaced as it is in very 

poor condition and has many trip hazards 

on it. 04/04/2022 10:54

Parks consulted in converting 

area back to wildflowers or 

grass.

4-Inspection 

Completed

11117871 Q21 NWAC 18/01/22

Tax Assist, McKee 

Avenue

To ask the Manager to inspect the 

pooling of water at (details supplied)

Details: outside the tax assist/ opticians 

on McKee Avenue, this may be due to the 

road being resurfaced recently. 04/04/2022 10:47

Gully blocked by Debris. Cleared 

by Lagan, Enquiry Resolved

11117870 Q5 NWAC 18/01/22

Our Lady of Victories 

School and the Credit 

Union on Ballymun 

Road.

To ask the Manager to look at the 

footpaths at Our Lady of Victories School 

and the Credit Union on Ballymun Road. 

They are in very poor condition and 12/09/2022 12:12

Job completed as part of 2022 

major works program Enquiry Resolved

11117691 Q10 NWAC 10.01.22

Ratoath Road between 

Ratoath Avenue and 

Westwood Road

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

some repair works to be carried out on 

(details supplied) where the side of the 

road is being broken away.

	Details: Ratoath Road between Ratoath 

Avenue and Westwood Road 29/06/2022 11:15

Job 41141225 - Job Closed, 

Done by Work Crew Enquiry Resolved

11117650 Q63 NWAC 10.01.22 10 Casement Drive,

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the repair of the sunken roadway at 

(details supplied).

Details: 10 Casement Drive, see below 29/06/2022 11:07

Job 41141227 - Job Closed, 

Done by Work Crew Enquiry Resolved

11117649 Q62 NWAC 10.01.22 69 Casement Park

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the repair of the badly uplifted footpath at 

(details supplied).

Details: 69 Casement Park 10/02/2022 08:48

Job 41141228 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

P
age 92



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11117024 Q16 NWAC 14.12.21

Glasnevin Avenue ( 73 

Glasnevin Ave, 

Ballygall, Dublin 11).

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the repair of the car park 

surface at (details supplied)

Details: The Autobahn Car Park 

08/12/2021 14:44 Autobahn Carpark not TIC

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11117020 Q36 NWAC 14.12.21 St. Pappins Road

To ask the Manager can the big electric 

pole on the corner of St. Pappins Road 

and Ballymun Road be painted.  It is 

rusting and the paint is flaking off and it 

looks unsightly.  Locals are carrying out 08/12/2021 14:07 Not RMS Issue

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11117294 Q10 CM 10/01/22

Ratoath Road between 

Ratoath Avenue and 

Westwood Road

"To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

some repair works to be carried out on 

(details supplied) where the side of the 

road is being broken away.

	Details: Ratoath Road between Ratoath 

Avenue and Westwood Road 14/12/2021 11:51

4-Inspection 

Completed

11117018 Q34 NWAC 14.12.21 13 Cranogue Terrace

"To ask the Manager provide an update 

on the request for the path repairs outside 

(details supplied) where the tree roots 

have lifted the paving and it is very 

dangerous for pedestrians. 

Details: 13 Cranogue Terrace 08/12/2021 14:39 Passed to IMU

Referred to 

Utility/other Dept

11117017 Q25 NWAC 14.12.21 14/16 Ballygall Avenue

To ask the Manager repair the pothole 

outside 14/16 Ballygall Avenue which was 

listed for repair some months ago. 04/04/2022 11:13

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 93



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11117014 Q21 NWAC 14.12.21

106-144 Ballygall Road 

West

"To ask the Manager inspect and repair 

the section of footpath at (details 

supplied) as it consists of tarmac/gravel 

which has crumbled and is in poor 

condition. 

Details: 106-144 Ballygall Road West 04/04/2022 12:31 Enquiry Resolved

11117008 Q15 NWAC 14.12.21

The Barry shops car 

park

"To ask the Manager to provide an 

update on the repair of the carpark 

surface at (details supplied)

Details: The Barry shops car park 16/05/2022 08:44

Job 41142115 - Job Closed, 

Done by Work Crew Enquiry Resolved

11117004 Q14 NWAC 1412.21

"42 Barry Park

"

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pathway outside (details 

supplied)

 

Details:  42 Barry Park

14/12/2021 12:34

Job 41140944 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11117002 Q13 NWAC 14.12.21 30 Grove Road

"To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the pavement outside (details 

supplied)

 

Details: 30 Grove Road 16/12/2021 15:41

Job 41141106 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11117001 Q4 NWAC 14.12.21 Balbutcher Drive

To ask the Manager to repair the road at 

Balbutcher Drive, It is in a really poor 

condition and has been requested many 08/12/2021 12:14

Balbutcher drive to be 

resurfaced as part of 2022 

resurfacing contracts

Resolved - No 

Further Action

11117000 Q1 NWAC 14.12.21

around the new Oiléan 

na Crannóige 

development Knowth 

Court and Balbutcher 

To ask the Manager to get the footpaths 

repaired all around the new Oiléan na 

Crannóige development.  The paths 

leading up from Knowth Court have 10/10/2022 08:42

3-Inspection 

Required

P
age 94



enquiry_nu

mber enquiry_reference enquiry_address enquiry_desc logged_date log_text enq_status_name

North West Area Committee – Council Questions Nov-2022 

Road Maintenance Services

11116767 Q121 NWAC 6.12.21

95 McKee Road Dublin 

11

"To ask the Chief Executive to provide an 

update on the footpath repair at (details 

supplied) as the resident at no 95 has 

recently been diagnosed as clinically blind 

and the poor condition of the footpath is a 

significant hazard.

04/04/2022 11:46 8-Job Completed

11116766 Q119 NWAC 6.12.21

Cedarwood Close, 

Dublin 11

To ask the Chief Executive to replace the 

street sign on (details supplied) which fell 

off earlier this year?

14/12/2021 19:52

4-Inspection 

Completed

11116765 Q112 NWAC 6.12.21

141 Glasnevin Avenue, 

Dublin 11

To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for 

the repair of the footpath at (details 

supplied).

16/12/2021 10:08

Job 41141044 - 01-Job Raised, 

Defect Job created via 

Connector 6-Job Raised

11117220 Q47 CM 14/12/21

Outside 3 and 4 Drapier 

Green

To ask the Manager to repair two large, 

potholes on the road at [details supplied] 

as these are particularly dangerous for 

cyclists and have already caused 

accidents. 

14/12/2021 19:45 6-Job Raised

11122211 Q23 NWAC 17.05.22

Outside the crèche on 

Griffith Road, Finglas 

East

To ask the Manager to arrange for the 

repair of the badly damaged carriageway 

at (details supplied).

Details: Outside the crèche on Griffith 10/06/2022 13:05

An inspection was carried out at 

this location and the defect 

logged for repair. Defects will be 

addressed based on priority and 

crew availability.

4-Inspection 

Completed

P
age 95


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 18th October 2022.
	2 Questions to the Area Manager.
	3 Finglas Area Office Report, Mick Carroll, Area Manager.
	4 Proposed Extinguishment of the Public Right of Way at 12 Gortbeg Drive, Finglas, Dublin 11.
	6 Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O'Reilly, Area Manager.
	9 With reference to a proposed disposal of a plot to the front of 48 Dolmen Court,   Poppintree, Dublin 11.
	10 Public Domain Report, Robert Ingram, A/Public Domain Officer
	11 Halloween Report, Mick Carroll and Jackie O'Reilly, Area Managers.
	12 Report on Community Grants 2022, Paul O'Halloran, Administrative Officer, Community & Social Development.
	16 Traffic Service Request, Status Report.
	Traffic Service Requests Report

	17 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting.
	18 Road Maintenance Report.

